
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA 
 

Meeting Police and Crime Committee 

Date Thursday 23 May 2019 

Time 10.00 am 

Place Chamber, City Hall, The Queen's 
Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at  
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee  
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Committee 
Unmesh Desai AM (Chair) 
Steve O'Connell AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Tony Arbour AM 
Sian Berry AM 
Andrew Dismore AM 

Len Duvall AM 
Florence Eshalomi AM 
Susan Hall AM 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Peter Whittle AM 

 

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chairman of the Committee to deal with the 

business listed below.  

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Wednesday 15 May 2019 

 
Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  
Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 
For media enquiries please contact Giles Broadbent, Communications Officer on  
020 7983 4067; Email: giles.broadbent@london.gov.uk.  If you have any questions about individual 
items please contact the author whose details are at the end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:giles.broadbent@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 
 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
Police and Crime Committee 
Thursday 23 May 2019 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chair. 

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests; 

 

(b) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 

Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and 

 

(c) Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 

which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 

of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 

Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 

action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 
 
 

3 Minutes (Pages 5 - 44) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Police 

and Crime Committee held on 30 April 2019 to be signed by the Chair as a correct 

record. 
 

 The appendix to the minutes set out on pages 11 to 44 is attached for Members and officers 

only but is available from the following area of the GLA’s website: www.london.gov.uk/mayor-

assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee 
 
 

  
 
 

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee


 

4 
 

4 Summary List of Actions (Pages 45 - 58) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the completed and ongoing actions arising 

from previous meetings of the Committee, as listed in the report. 
 
 

5 Response to the Committee's Letter on Setting Local Policing Priorities 
and Tackling Neighbourhood Crime (Pages 59 - 64) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Teresa Young, teresa.young@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 6559 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the response from the Mayor to its letter 

on setting local policing priorities and neighbourhood policing, as attached at 

Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
 

6 Hate Crime (Pages 65 - 68) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Becky Short, becky.short@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4760 

 

The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the action taken by the Chair under delegated authority, in consultation 

with the party Group Lead Members, to agree the scope for the Committee’s 

investigation of hate crime. 

 

(b) Note the report as background to the discussion on hate crime in London and 

to note the subsequent discussion. 

 

(c) Delegate authority to the Chair of the Committee, in consultation with party 

Group Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree any output 

from the discussion.  
 
 

7 Police and Crime Committee Work Programme (Pages 69 - 72) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Becky Short, becky.short@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4760 

 

The Committee is recommended to note the work programme, as set out in the 

report. 
 
 

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk
mailto:becky.short@london.gov.uk
mailto:becky.short@london.gov.uk


 

5 
 

8 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled for Tuesday, 4 June 2019 at 10am in the 

Chamber, City Hall. 
 
 

9 Any Other Business the Chair Considers Urgent  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2018 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 23 May 2018 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM  

Jennette Arnold OBE AM European Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LB Bexley 

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LB Lewisham 

Unmesh Desai AM  

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM  

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM  

Nicky Gavron AM  

Susan Hall AM Member, LB Harrow 

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London 
Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough] 
 

3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 3

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality
mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: Police and Crime Committee 
Date: Tuesday 30 April 2019 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Committee Room 5, City Hall, The 

Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 
Copies of the minutes may be found at:  
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee 

  

 
Present: 
 
Steve O'Connell AM (Chairman) 
Unmesh Desai AM (Deputy Chair) 
Sian Berry AM 
Andrew Dismore AM 
Len Duvall AM 
Florence Eshalomi AM 
Susan Hall AM 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Peter Whittle AM 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chairman's Announcements (Item 1) 

 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from: Tony Arbour AM for whom Andrew Boff AM 

attended as a substitute; and Len Duvall AM for whom Navin Shah AM attended as a 

substitute. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interests (Item 2) 

 

2.1 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests.  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/police-and-crime-committee


Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Tuesday 30 April 2019 

 

 
 

 

2.2 During the discussion on Agenda Item 7 (The London Violence Reduction Unit), 

Florence Eshalomi AM for the purposes of transparency, declared a non-pecuniary interest 

because she knew Lib Peck, Director of the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU), as they had both 

formerly been councillors at the London Borough of Lambeth. 

 
 
3   Minutes (Item 3) 

 

3.1 Resolved: 

 

That the minutes of the Police and Crime Committee meeting held on 6 March 2019 

be signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
 
4   Summary List of Actions (Item 4) 

 

4.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

4.2 Resolved: 
 

That the outstanding and completed actions arising from the previous meetings of 

the Committee, as listed in the report, be noted. 

 
 
5   Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Item 5) 

 

5.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

5.2 Resolved: 
 

(a) That the recent action taken by the Chairman under delegated authority, 

following consultation with the party Group Lead Members and 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM be noted, namely to agree:  

 

(i) A letter to the Mayor on tackling neighbourhood crime; 

 

(ii) The arrangements for the Committee’s site visit to the Metropolitan 

Police Service’s Mounted Branch at Lewisham Police Station on 

20 March 2019; and 

 

(iii) The scope for the discussion with the Director of the Violence Reduction 

Unit at this meeting of the Committee.  

 

Page 6



Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Tuesday 30 April 2019 

 

 
 

 

(b) That the letter to the Mayor on tackling neighbourhood crime, as attached at 

Appendix 1 to the report, and the summary of the site visit as set out in 

paragraph 4.4 of this report be noted. 

 
 
6   Response to the Committee's Letter on a New Model for Preventing 

Violence in London (Item 6) 

 
6.1 The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 
6.2 Resolved: 
 

That the response from the Mayor to the Committee’s letter on a new model for 

preventing violence in London, as attached at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted. 

 
 
7   The London Violence Reduction Unit (Item 7) 

 

7.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat, as background to 

putting questions to Lib Peck, Director of the VRU, on the priorities for the VRU, how it 

would tackle all types of violence, how the VRU would deliver across boroughs, and how its 

success would be measured. 

 

7.2 A transcript of the discussion is attached at Appendix 1. 

 

7.3 During the course of the discussion, the Director of the VRU agreed to: 

 Urge Chelsea and Westminster Hospital to share anonymised data relating to injuries 

from violence to persons who presented at their accident and emergency department; 

 Consider how families and victims of violence could support anti-knife crime strategies as 

ambassadors, using the lessons learned about the limited impact of the Mayor’s modern 

slavery ambassadors;  

 Provide a list of local authorities and groups of local authorities where they were 

establishing local violence reduction units or the equivalent to adopt a public health 

approach to tackling violence; 

 Provide existing examples of multi-agency working, through which a public health 

approach to tackle violence was being used; and 

 Once they had been agreed, to share the key performance indicators for the VRU with 
the Committee. 

 

7.4 At the end of the discussion, the Chairman thanked the Director of the VRU for her 

attendance and answers to Members’ questions. 

 

Page 7



Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Tuesday 30 April 2019 

 

 
 

 

7.5 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the report and discussion be noted. 

 

(b) That authority be delegated to the Chair of the Committee in consultation 

with the Deputy Chair, party Group Lead Members and Caroline 

Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree any output from the discussion.  

 
 
8   Police and Crime Committee Work Programme (Item 8) 

 

8.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 

8.2 Resolved: 

 

(a) That the summary of the Committee’s work completed during the 2018/19 

Assembly year be noted.  

 

(b) That the provisional schedule of meetings for the 2019/20 Assembly year, 

which is subject to agreement at the Annual Meeting of the London Assembly 

on 2 May 2019, be noted. 

 

(c) That the topics for the Committee’s thematic meetings in May and June 2019, 

as agreed by the GLA Oversight Committee at its meeting on 8 April 2019, be 

noted. 

 

(d) That, in relation to urgent matters only, a general delegation of authority be 

agreed in respect of the Committee’s powers and functions (apart from those 

that cannot under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 be 

delegated) to the Chairman of the Committee, in consultation with the party 

Group Lead Members of the Committee and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, from 

the close of this meeting until the next meeting of the Committee on 14 May 

2019, subject to agreement of the calendar of meetings at the Annual 

Meeting of the London Assembly on 2 May 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Greater London Authority 
Police and Crime Committee 

Tuesday 30 April 2019 

 

 
 

 

9   Date of Next Meeting (Item 9) 

 

9.1 The date of the next meeting was scheduled for Tuesday, 14 May 2019 at 10am in the 

Chamber, City Hall. 

 
 
10   Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent (Item 10) 

 

10.1 The Chairman thanked Assembly Members, officers and guests for their support during his 

three years of chairing the Committee.  The Deputy Chair, on behalf of the Committee, 

thanked the Chairman for the way in which he had chaired the Committee during the last 

three years. 

 
 
11   Close of Meeting  

 

11.1 The meeting ended at 11.52am. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Chairman  Date 
 
Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer; Telephone: 020 7983 6559;  

Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 
 

Appendix 1 
 

London Assembly Police and Crime Committee – Tuesday, 30 April 2019 
 

Transcript of Item 7 – The London Violence Reduction Unit 
 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  That is quite a nice segue into our main item of business, which is a 

discussion with Lib Peck [Director, Violence Reduction Unit].  Welcome, Lib, to the meeting today.  This 

meeting is specifically on the subject of the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU).  Members of the public and others 

will know that we do cover a range of other issues and we will be publishing our work programme of our items 

and issues to report to Londoners very, very shortly, but today is particularly around the Mayor’s London VRU.  

I will set the scene with some questions.   

 

So, Lib, vision for the VRU.  Can you briefly set out your strategic vision for the VRU, please? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, sure.  The main objectives of the unit are really to try 

to tackle violent crime.  It is violence in its entirety, not just knife crime, albeit that knife crime was probably 

the prompt to set up the unit.  It is to delve into the causes, using an evidence base and establishing that, to 

make sure that we bring together public sector partners to intervene in those critical moments of people’s lives 

to try to divert them from potentially getting caught up in violence, either as a perpetrator or as a victim.   

 

It is classically referred to as a “public health approach” although there are probably many different definitions 

of what that actually means.  In essence, it is the data-driven nature of it, the multi-partnership working and, 

absolutely critically, having the community and young people’s voices at the heart of any solution.  Looking at 

what we want to see and getting to the vision, if you were looking back in ten years’ time what you would 

want to see is a society where violence was not accepted as a norm, where young people and Londoners felt 

safe and that they were part of an inclusive and tolerant city, and where there was a real marrying between the 

actual and the reality of what people face. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Thank you for that.  We will get on later to the fact that there are some 

comparables with the Scotland model, which you have been studying.  You will know that this Committee 

visited the West Midlands to find out about their model.  We will also refer later to the VRU Steering Group 

and the papers that were published a couple of days ago for tomorrow’s meeting.  We will get into some depth 

around that.   

 

You have laid out the vision.  What are the immediate challenges to that vision and why would this not be a 

model or an approach that would have been in situ already?  What is new and what are the challenges, briefly? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  What we are doing at the moment is not quite breaking 

through, is it?  That is probably what we would all accept.  We have seen a rise in crime since 2014.  We saw an 

acute rise in knife crime from 2018.  I think it is incumbent on all of us to try something slightly different.  I do 

genuinely mean all of us and welcome this opportunity to come and talk to all of you and work with all of you.  

Now, there are elements of it that are no different at all - we know that putting money into prevention is 

pretty much common sense, really - but there are other elements of it and there is also good work going on, 

both within London and, as you have already referred to, across the country, which we want to be drawing 

together and promoting more.   

 

Page 11



 
 

In essence, we need a bit of a systems change.  We need to try things a bit differently.  We need to be looking 

at different models to try to crack something that I am sure we all are very concerned about.  It is the very 

deliberate way in which we are looking to try to get partners around the table to reprioritise violence within 

their organisations and within their strategies and working together effectively to make the kinds of 

interventions I was talking about more meaningful. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  On a strategic level, Scotland’s approach has been there for some time.  It 

is a ten-year commitment, I understand, with a long-term political and financial grip, which I guess is needed.  

Is that something you or the Mayor will be looking to deliver from a long-term point of view? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is both short-term and long-term.  If you want me to 

reference Scotland first off, I have not been to Scotland but there are representatives from Glasgow who 

basically sat on the [VRU] Partnership Reference Group, and a lot of the thinking before I started in post had 

been done through discussions with some of the people most involved in the Glasgow model.   

 

Obviously, that is the thing that has had a lot of profile in the press, and rightly so because it has done some 

fantastic work, but I am under no illusions.  London is not Glasgow.  There is a population of 600,000 and 

there is a sense of coherence around all the agencies that you need to be working with.  London is a much 

more complex context in which to be working, both in terms of the number of organisations that there are and 

the ethnicity and the diversity of Londoners as opposed perhaps to Glasgow.   

 

Also, I think there are other things to learn.  Glasgow very much started off with a quite hard-line enforcement 

approach and then moved from that, if you listen and talk to the Glasgow workers, and developed an approach 

that got the community on board.  We are very clear in London that nothing works unless you have the 

community at the heart of it.  There are both differences in terms of context and differences in terms of the 

way we would want to work. 

 

In terms then of short-term/long-term, we are looking at both.  I think there is a real public appetite to change 

what is happening at the moment.  There is quite a lot of excitement from people I talk to about adopting a 

public health approach.  There is a lot of energy outside the organisation to get involved and do something.  I 

am not saying that the VRU can provide all of those channels for people, but it certainly has a responsibility to 

do that.  That is very much the short-term, and obviously we have the budget to do that short-term.   

 

Then in terms of long-term, what we are really talking about is a cultural change.  When you asked me to 

outline the vision I looked ten years hence and tried to look back, and you are not going to create that kind of 

cultural change unless you are doing it over a longer period of time.  It is unrealistic.  However, I do genuinely 

think it has to be both.  I do not think we can just say, “It is ten years and then we are waiting for some 

change”.  I do not think that is acceptable. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  I am glad you mentioned the comparables or lack of comparables with 

Scotland because there is some criticism that the concept is mentioned too often.  Certainly, in another place 

and here, the Glasgow model is different.  There are things to be learned that were effective and we can learn 

from that model but, as you said quite rightly, and I am pleased you did, London is not Scotland and there is a 

whole different dynamic.  You yourself had a previous community safety role in the boroughs. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I did, yes, at London Councils. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Tell us a little bit about your experience and how that is going to shape 

your role for this job of yours. 

Page 12



 
 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I was on London Councils as an Executive member from 

about 2014, a year and a half after I became Leader of Lambeth [Council].  As I am sure you know, it is a 

cross-party organisation.  Of the Executive Committee - I think there are ten Executive Committee members - 

seven are Labour and three are Conservative.  We worked very well together.  The role that I had during that 

time was Crime and Public Protection.  That enabled me to represent the views of all London Councils in 

City Hall about issues that we felt were significant.  Because I believe local authorities are incredibly important, 

it was an important job to do and I felt very pleased that cross-party colleagues had that faith in me to be able 

to do it.  I learnt a lot from it. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  We are going to be asking quite a few questions about the work 

programme itself.  We had a little bit of a process at the beginning, so we can work through this.  Has the draft 

delivery model - and I will ask the supplementary question in a minute - been signed off by the Mayor?  When 

is it going to be signed off and agreed, the model itself?  We are in April [2019].  We chatted a month or so 

ago and there was a lot of conversation about the model evolving.  When is the final model going to be signed 

off? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Sorry, just a clarification.  Do you mean “the model” as in 

the local delivery model that is talked about a lot in the papers or do you just generally mean the whole work 

programme for the unit?   

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  I assume he has to sign it because you have some money to spend? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  There is £5 million to be spending this year [2019/20], which you want to 

get out the door.  When is that going to start happening? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I am not going to give you a precise date, but I can give 

you a sort of sequencing of the things that I think need to happen.  The first is that we need to agree the 

framework, which is going to the [VRU] Steering Group on Wednesday [1 May 2019].  The Partnership 

Reference Group that I have already referenced has played an important role in shaping up the work of the 

VRU and has representatives from all of the relevant public sector organisations.  That is an important starting 

point.  You will note that there was discussion about the local delivery model within it and some of the changes 

that we are beginning to focus on and shape up.   

 

At that meeting, we will also be making sure that partners are clear about what their priorities are within that 

framework.  As we get that sorted, I hope, we will move on very quickly to developing a commissioning 

framework.  Then, as you said, the challenge is getting money out the door.  You will notice that in the 

paperwork there is reference to “commissioning principles”, the way in which we are going to try to spend the 

money, which was developed over a series of three practitioner workshops. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  My last point really, and again we will blend into the other questions, is 

that it is an evolving structure.  I have seen the ‘egg timer sideways into a bow tie’ structure because I have 

had briefings from Croydon, as you would expect.  This was, up until yesterday, in my simple mind, a local hub 

predicated scheme.  I have questions coming in about that as well, the local hub.  I actually have a draft 

alignment here of the hubs.  Croydon, bless it, as ever, was bullying everyone to be a hub.  There are six 

boroughs.  I understood that it was a hub system predicated on the coverage of all of London because you had 

six hubs and they had four boroughs, or however it worked out.  We read from the minutes that the hub 

Page 13



 
 

system has been dropped and also a pan-London approach has been dropped.  There will be some more 

questions but could you just -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Talk you through the thinking, basically, at the moment? 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  -- reflect on the change, because that is quite a big change? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, it is quite a big change.  I appreciate that.  I would not 

say it has been ‘dropped’.  We are evolving work.  I came in when some work had been already done on the 

model and as you said, it had been variously described as an egg timer or bow tie.  I am very clear that I need 

to talk to and listen to people on the ground and what they want to see happen.  The conversations I have had 

with community practitioners, with members of the community - I have met lots of community groups in the 

last six weeks - and with Chief Executives, which I did through London Councils on one of their away days, was 

that there was a bit of reluctance about setting up a new structure in places where structures might already 

exist.  That is something I am quite sympathetic to.  I do not want to put a lot of resource into setting up a 

structure that becomes a local VRU for the sake of having a local VRU.   

 

There is also a feeling that while £5 million is a decent sum of money, once you start spreading it all the way 

across London it actually has much less impact.  All of those conversations I have had, and certainly from my 

own experience of looking at funding distribution, sitting in a different hat at a different place, is that you 

want to make an impact.  This is a project about learning from where things are really happening.  What most 

people want to see from this unit is a clearer idea of what best practice looks like and how we can learn from it 

where it is relevant.   

 

For me, trying to set up a new structure across London perhaps takes money away from things that already 

exist and perhaps dilutes the learning too much at this stage.  Therefore, the local delivery should be a bit 

more focused in the first instance and should be predicated on very open and transparent criteria, which we are 

obviously working up.  We would be looking at the places most affected by violent crime and looking at where 

the greatest level of community engagement is at the moment, trying to draw from that lessons that then can 

be used across London.  That is really the kind of motivation and the thinking around it.   

 

I have to say it is not yet set in stone.  I apologise, I am sure people want me to come here and be able to 

present everything all sorted, but it is not.  It is evolving.  It is an iterative process. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  No, I can understand that.  Again, I think I can understand the fact that 

with £5 million across 32 boroughs, the argument is that it could be too thinly spread and it may well be that 

you want to concentrate on certain models, test those models, see if they work individually -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I think so.  Personally, I think that makes a lot more sense, 

and from the conversations I have been having with people that is what they tend to feel as well.   

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Just to speak across you, you still need the boroughs to deliver on a local 

level. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  That still is the model?  It is not this building delivering, it is going out to 

the boroughs to deliver? 

 

Page 14



 
 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Absolutely.  Sorry, I should make two points clear.  You are 

absolutely right on that last challenge.  Yes, the integrity of the model is that communities’ local activity is not 

going to be determined from City Hall.  It is us supporting, enabling and promoting best practice that is 

happening, working with the existing structures.  Absolutely.  That bit has not changed at all.  It is just the way 

of doing it and the concentration of doing it. 

 

The second thing is that obviously there will be some central activity that I would hope would benefit all of 

London.  It is not as if, if you are sitting somewhere in a different part of London, you are not going to see any 

impact of the VRU or have any relationship to it.  Not at all.  It is just that that element of it will not be where 

you will be seeing the money. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Some of those boroughs are working up quite advanced methods and 

procedures already.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, Croydon being one of them. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Right, I am going to stop there for the moment.   

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Good morning.  I just might have misheard when you were talking about the public health 

approach.  Did you say you had not been to Scotland? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, I have not been to Scotland. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Would it not be quite useful, maybe, to go up there? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, I think I will go up there as well.   

 

Peter Whittle AM:  When do you think you will go? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Fairly soon, but I have had conversations with the Scottish 

representatives who come down to -- 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  There is nothing like being on the ground. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, there is not, and I fully intend to go.  I know 

Sophie Linden [Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime] and Cressida Dick [CBE QPM, Commissioner of Police of 

the Metropolis] went.  I know of other people who have gone.  I do intend to go but no, I have not as yet. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Maybe you could make that a priority. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK, yes. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Thank you. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I wanted to pick up the leadership role that you have here, Lib, because it is a 

really important role and I think it is quite controversial that a party political figure was appointed to this role 

from the start.  What are you doing to overcome those concerns that are out there? 

 

Page 15



 
 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is interesting that the only concerns that have been 

voiced are by politicians rather than by community groups.  What I was very pleased about and what I looked 

for was strong endorsements from the community groups that I worked with in Lambeth, all of whom thought 

it was a good appointment.  I have to say I do not think that was because they wanted me out the door, or I 

hope not.   

 

I work cross-party all the time.  I have just referred to London Councils.  I have already been to see 

[Councillor] Nickie Aiken, as the Leader of [City of] Westminster, just to talk through the agenda.  I have a 

good relationship with her.  I was also Deputy Leader of the Labour Group at the Local Government 

Association, which I am sure you know works cross-party.  I have no problems working with politicians from all 

parties.  Indeed, I am very pleased to be here today because I genuinely do want people’s views from across 

the Assembly.  I think on my day two I wrote out to Assembly Members inviting them to meet with me and as a 

result of that I have met with several [Members] of the [Police and Crime] Committee, who have responded 

positively.   

 

I suppose fundamentally, for me, we are in politics because we want to get things done and we want to make 

change.  The only way we are going to tackle something as huge and as complex as this is if we really do 

genuinely all get behind a common agenda.  I do not see it as a problem. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Do you understand now that you are an officer, not a politician, and therefore 

you have to act differently? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I think that is pretty self-evident really, yes. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I am just wondering why, then, you felt it was appropriate to agree to speak, 

and then that was withdrawn but you still attended a public meeting in the midst of a by-election in your old 

ward, when the Chief Executive of the Mayor’s Office of Policing and Crime (MOPAC) [Rebecca Lawrence] and 

the Monitoring Officer [Emma Strain] had advised you not to.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, I do not think they did advise me not to.  I have been 

quite clear on that.  I got advice saying I was perfectly entitled to go and speak at a public meeting where I had 

been invited as the Director of the VRU.  The advice was very clear.  I realised that concerns had been voiced 

and I thought - to absolutely speak to the first point that you raised, which was trying to build alliances - I 

would not speak, but it was a community meeting that had a whole range of speakers.  Again, party politics 

was an irrelevance to it and would have been an irrelevance to my contribution to that public meeting had I 

spoken. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  However, you still turned up to a meeting in a ward where there is an election 

going on -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Where I live. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  -- when actually it might be better to step back because you are now an officer, 

not a politician.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Sorry, I have rights as an individual.  I live in that ward.  I 

am perfectly entitled to go along to a meeting in a ward.  I heard concerns about me being a speaker.  Even 

though I did not actually agree with them and even though I had advice to suggest that I could be a speaker, I 

Page 16



 
 

withdrew because I did not want to stoke them.  I am perfectly entitled to go to a meeting in the place that I 

live on an issue that I am working on.   

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  One of the issues with politicians and officers is that it is not just whether you 

do have a conflict, as it were; it is the perception out there.  Sometimes it is better to take a step back. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I heard a concern around perception and therefore did not 

speak, but I am afraid lots of people know me in the local area.  I have worked with lots of people over many 

periods of time and they know what I am like.  I would want to be at something as important as that in my 

area. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I think, shifting from being a politician to an officer, there are different 

boundaries, but I have made my point.  Thank you. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Different challenges, I would have thought.   

 

Susan Hall AM:  I am pleased to hear that you are happy to work with people from all the different parties.  I 

have a copy here of the partners and it is very heavy on Labour people.  How many Conservative, Liberal 

Democrat, Green or United Kingdom Independence Party members do you have? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Sorry, are you talking about the Partnership Reference 

Group? 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes.  I have here that you obviously have Sadiq [Khan, Mayor of London]; Joanne 

[McCartney AM, Deputy Mayor]; Debbie [Weekes-Bernard, Deputy Mayor for Social Integration, Social 

Mobility and Community Engagement]; [Councillor] Jas Athwal [Leader, Redbridge Council], who is Labour; 

[Councillor] Jamie Carswell [Lead for Housing, London Councils], who used to be or still is a Labour councillor; 

and yourself.  To get a broad approach, where are the Conservatives, as an example? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  The Partnership Reference Group is made up of 

decision-makers or people who are representing bigger organisations rather than just party political 

organisations, if I can say that.  My role in being there was to represent London Councils, which as we have 

said is a cross-party group.  If I had not been the lead for Crime and Public Protection it could easily have been 

[Councillor] Nickie [Aiken, Leader, City of Westminster], who is one of the ten members of the London 

Councils Executive, or indeed [Councillor] Ravi Govindia [CBE], who is the Leader of Wandsworth, or the 

Leader of Bexley [Councillor Teresa O’Neill].  That just so happened because it was crime.  You would find a 

different representative on a different -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, I do understand that. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  Well, [Councillor] Jamie [Carswell] is there in the 

capacity of Lead for Housing. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes.  No, I get that as well.  I am just thinking that it is quite a left-wing line-up, if you like, 

and I am just wondering if you want to be really inclusive - and politicians do represent, themselves, an awful 

lot of people - why there is not anybody from any other [political] group here to make it more inclusive. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  I do not recognise your perception of it and I am not 

entirely sure personally that that would be appropriate in terms of representation, given that if you look at the 

Page 17



 
 

list of other people who are represented there - it goes back a bit to Caroline’s [Pidgeon MBE AM] earlier 

point, actually - who are: a representative from the probation service, a representative from the health service 

and education, all of those people are representing their organisation, not representing their political party.  

London Councils, the community representatives who are there, the voice of a young person who is there; I 

could go on but I think you kind of get the point. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, you could.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Personally, I am very happy to attend this meeting or to 

come to your different party political groupings and talk to you about the VRU.  That would seem to be 

probably a better place to put it. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  You see, you have said something very interesting there, “I do not recognise that 

perception”. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, I do not. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, but in your job, you absolutely have to recognise perception.  One thing that we all 

learn as politicians is that sometimes it is not actually what is the case, it is what is perceived to be the case.  

Therefore, that is something you absolutely, in my view, should be looking at.  If you want to get balance on 

this, to get answers to broad issues and questions, then you need broad thought processes on main bodies and 

people who do think from a different angle.  I am sure it is not just my perception, it is other people’s 

perception, and therefore perhaps recognising different perceptions is a very important part of your job going 

forward as an officer. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I agree with the importance of perceptions.  I am also, I 

think, allowed to disagree about what the [VRU] Committee is doing and who is around the table.   

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  The point is well made.  You need to be working with all of London out 

there, all the London boroughs and the London Leaders of different political persuasions, and they need to 

know that you are receptive to the issues in their boroughs, be it Bromley or be it Brent.  It is a point well 

made.   

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Sorry.  Obviously, I should declare an interest in that I was a Lambeth councillor so I 

have worked with Lib.  Just picking up on some comments from my two Assembly colleagues, one of the 

things we found in Lambeth and now I am finding in Southwark is that in reality, on the ground, a number of 

people involved in this very difficult situation that we are dealing with want us as politicians and you as an 

officer now to get on with this.  In looking at how we can make sure those voices are being involved in helping 

to find the solution to this key issue, can you outline the work that you are going to be doing going forward 

with those community members?   

 

There is a whole issue around perception of politicians but the perception on the ground is that the voices of 

the real people who are suffering from this issue day in, day out, are not being heard.  Their voices are not 

coming through in terms of dealing with some of the complex strategies.  Their voices are not being listened to 

in terms of where we should spend that funding.  Can you outline how you are going to do that in your role as 

an officer now? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  Thank you, Florence.  I certainly can.  I have made 

strenuous attempts in the last six weeks to go out and meet as many organisations and as many communities 

Page 18



 
 

as I possibly can.  I am very happy to read a list but I do not think you probably want that.  However, I think it 

would be useful just to touch on some of the groups that I have met: a couple of the organisations in Croydon, 

also Ben Lindsay, who is from Power to Fight in New Cross, some of the more established organisations such as 

the London Economic Action Partnership (LEAP) - I am sure you have spoken at their annual general meeting - 

and Catch22, some slightly more familiar to me, like Voyage, Dwaynamics and Safer London, just to give you a 

sense.   

 

Now, that in turn is also not necessarily always getting to the voice of the people who feel most marginalised.  

I do absolutely agree with you there is then a critical challenge that you speak to some of those who are 

grassroots organisations, some of whom are more established charities, to be in the forefront of it.  They are 

quite often the way you can access more people.  Although, there is something about going out and just 

meeting people who are concerned and who have been affected.  The intention as of the end of next week is 

to make sure that a couple of days a week, that is something that I am doing.   

 

We are also working here with the Peer Outreach Team, who I have come to know a little bit, and the [London] 

Youth Assembly, so that we are getting into the right kind of places.  There have been quite a few community 

meetings already that are referenced in the papers.  The Community Practitioner Group has met three times 

and a there are couple more open community meetings.  Looking at the best way to work with, listen to, and 

communicate with people from as broad a range of experience and background as possible across all of London 

is absolutely at the heart of it and we are exploring how to do that now. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  It will be key in the delivery point of view -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is, totally. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  -- so that you get the right delivery partners, and I think the boroughs 

will be particularly well-placed to identify those. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Just very quickly, I think when we met individually I asked if you would be publishing your 

meetings in the same way that the Mayor does.  Is that going ahead?  Will you be doing that? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Again, mindful I am not a politician and I think that is what 

most politicians do rather than civil servants here -- 

 

Sian Berry AM:  It is normally done. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  -- I thought that probably was not the best way of going 

forward, but I think there is something about how the website reflects the work that is being done and is open 

and transparent.  I take your general point about how you publicise what is going on and how we do it, but I 

would steer away from that more political way of perhaps addressing the issue. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Thank you for that.  We have some questions now around the Emerging 

Work programme.   

 

Sian Berry AM:  We now have papers for(?) the meeting tomorrow.  Am I right about the number of days in 

April?  Yes.  This does start to talk about the work programme and the things that you will be doing.  Can you 

outline for us what is emerging within that work programme?  There are about ten different points but if you 

could talk about the -- 

 

Page 19



 
 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Critically, we are looking at the importance of adverse 

childhood experiences (ACEs), which I am sure everyone is aware of.  That is underpinning a lot of the work, 

obviously underpinning a lot of the interventions, and we are thinking about it in terms of the life of a young 

person and at what point in their journey through life we can meaningfully intervene.  The work programme is 

trying to look at that in a contextual framework.  It is saying that violence is not one isolated incident, it 

happens in a particular place and it happens in a particular context.   

 

The themes or the objectives that have been outlined start with, “How do you make an individual more 

resilient?”  What are we doing in the early years to give a young person the best chances in life?  It walks 

through to what kind of family support we are providing, moving through to interaction with peers as a young 

person.  That is where I think the voice of the young person and young people shaping up that part of the 

agenda becomes absolutely fundamental.  You may notice it is light on that in there but that is very 

deliberately so.   

 

How then do institutions engage with young people?  We know that young people are safest at school.  What 

are we doing to make sure that schools are healthy places, places which build people’s resilience at the same 

time as trying to keep young people in school?  What are we doing when people are not in school, when they 

have been excluded from school, but also what are we doing when they cannot be at school, ie in the holiday 

period or in public places after school?  We know that the 4.00pm to 7.00pm period is particularly dangerous 

for young people.   

 

Then moving through, I suppose, and thinking about relationships with the police, relationships with the 

community and also a young person’s role in society.  It is almost that as a young person gets older, their 

interaction with different institutions or their role in society expands.  That is how we are framing up the work 

programme.   

 

To then get into a bit more detail around that, I do want to caveat that massively with the fact that we are 

discussing this tomorrow at the Partnership Reference Group and I will be looking to partners around the table 

to add in ideas.  I also want to caveat it with some of the points that we have just been talking about, the 

community voice being central to it.  That is ongoing work, the young people’s voice for that period that I just 

identified being fundamental.   

 

We are looking, for example, at the various pockets of practice where frontline workers and police officers are 

beginning to be trained in trauma-informed approaches.  There is something around that.  There is teasing out 

what is the best practice.  There is definitely a lot of evidence about how important that is.  There is 

importance around the family and family support, which the Mayor has already put some investment into.  Let 

us look at what is going on across London.  Steve [O’Connell AM], as the Chairman, has already mentioned 

some of the work that is going on in Croydon.  They are doing some really interesting modelling there but 

there are other London boroughs that are as well.   

 

Moving into education, for example, thinking not only about the exclusions piece and the off-rolling but also 

thinking about the transition around primary to secondary.  I know that here we fund a programme called 

Stepping Stones that is trying to get at exactly that very difficult part of a young person’s life to navigate.   

 

Moving on to the police, as you are very aware, I think this Committee has looked at some of the evidence 

there, or not the evidence but some of the perceptions of young people and how it is incredibly polarised 

dependent on where those young people come from as to their perception of the police.  Therefore, what can 

you realistically do to have impact on perceptions?  The fundamental point about police and young people’s 

relationships.   

Page 20



 
 

 

Then, moving through, I mentioned society and I think there is a big piece of work to do around the media, the 

media fuelling people’s fear but also fuelling very negative perceptions.  Cutting across all of that, I think there 

is a huge piece on disproportionality as well that we need to be upfront and own.  The way the media reports a 

black victim of knife crime is one example, as opposed to a white person.  It is very, very different and not 

acceptable in a city that is as diverse as London. 

 

That is a very long answer but hopefully it gives you a bit of flavour about the kind of things that we are 

looking to do and how we are structuring them, which is essentially across a child’s journey. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  OK.  That is a colossal number of things. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is, yes. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  You described them as “pieces”, but they are all things that would need doing across quite a 

wide topic.  One area in which what you have described is not very wide is that you are mainly talking about 

youth violence here.  In our letter to you and to the Mayor; in fact, no, as you were coming in we wrote a letter 

to the Mayor -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I have not seen that one then. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Yes, so it was the letter from us about what was expected of the VRU. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I see what you mean.  Apologies. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  I think it was not to you at the time.  We asked that it should be focused on all kinds of 

violence, not only knife crime and youth violence, and we particularly asked about domestic abuse.  Domestic 

abuse is a very prevalent form of violence in London but it is also an ACE, so preventing that would also knock 

on into your youth work.  Why is there not more about that in this work plan?  I know you have gone very 

broad with your introduction but you did not mention it. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, that is a fair spot.  I completely agree with you in terms 

of what I have just said, I completely agree with you that it has to be violence in its entirety and I did say that 

in my opening comments.  On the ACEs, I took it for read that we knew that domestic abuse was one of those, 

or violence in a household.  I completely agree with you.  It is one of the things I feel very passionate about 

and one of the things that we actually did a lot of pioneering work in Lambeth around.  The interconnection 

around the experience of a young person and how that disables them in terms of going forward, I think, in life, 

is absolutely spot-on.   

 

How we integrate that into the work programme is definitely something I am mindful of, and I would be honest 

in saying at the moment we have not probably quite cracked it.  The Mayor has given obviously an additional 

£15 million to commission some of the support services around domestic abuse, which is to be welcomed, and I 

would very much hope to be involved in or will be involved in looking at how that has impact across all of this 

agenda. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Are you speaking regularly to the Victims’ Commissioner about this? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, Claire Waxman, yes. 

 

Page 21



 
 

Sian Berry AM:  I have a tiny question and then a very big question next.  The tiny question is that in your 

papers, under “Changing perceptions and national influences”, there is a very encouraging line which says that 

you want to “discourage the imagery of knives and other shocking newspaper and social media headlines that 

spread fear rather than understand the causes of violence”.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  That is something I have been very concerned about for some time.  Can I ask, is the Mayor 

committed to this now - he has not been particularly - and the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)?  The 

Commissioner [of Police of the Metropolis, Cressida Dick CBE QPM] has been very resistant to my concerns 

about the MPS publishing quite scary pictures of knives regularly on social media and releasing them to the 

press.  They can get those images from the police. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I can answer for the Mayor.  Yes, and it is some work that I 

would welcome doing with you, to be honest.  I think it is really important and the more voices we have behind 

that as a drive, the more impactful it is going to be.  I cannot, I am afraid, speak on behalf of the Commissioner 

[of Police of the Metropolis, Cressida Dick CBE QPM] at the moment, but I have met with the Commissioner 

and do meet regularly with her as well and I will make sure that is something that is raised with her.  I think it 

will come up from the police representative tomorrow as part of our work programme.   

 

Sian Berry AM:  That would be really useful.  If you like, I can give you transcripts of what the Commissioner 

[of Police of the Metropolis, Cressida Dick CBE QPM] has been saying to me and it is not brilliant. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I hear what you are saying. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  That is just the tiny thing I wanted to mention as an aside.   

 

Moving on to ACEs in this work programme, obviously we have mentioned domestic violence as an ACE.  Other 

things like neglect, sexual abuse and family breakdown are very early influences on people’s lives.  They go 

right through.  When you look at people affected by violence, when you look at people affected by 

homelessness and you add up the number of ACEs, you see this incredible, more or less exponential -- the 

more you have, the more it affects them in later life.   

 

I wanted to ask you about what you have been saying about not having enough funding, essentially, to do 

something that is pan-London and wanting to focus your money.  The question is: how preventative is that 

going to be if you are focusing on areas that have high violence now?  The people perpetrating that violence 

now in ten years’ time are going to be much older adults if they are young adults now.  The people with whom 

you are going to do the best preventative work - you keep talking about in ten years’ time - are going to be 

quite young children now and you need to be getting involved with them now.  Focusing your efforts on where 

there is high violence may not be as preventative as focusing your efforts on areas where there are high levels 

of ACEs.   

 

Neglect is a really good example.  No children should need to be neglected.  Public services can step in.  No 

matter how bad your family is, public services can step in.  Those are areas where you would think that a 

universal, London-wide effort would be the most preventative.  How does this square with you talking 

essentially about piloting projects and seeing how they go, when the outcomes are so long-term and the 

problems are so widespread?  Does that make sense? 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  To partly unpick that very good question, it is also a little bit about -- 

Page 22



 
 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Do not explain my question, Chairman. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  It is a very good question, typically it is a very good question, but it is also 

linked to measurables as well. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  I have a follow-up on that. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  There was quite a lot there in what you said.  I do not agree 

with your general analysis obviously on the importance of ACEs.  I said that in terms of where the funding was 

going to go, we are developing the criteria at the moment and the criteria needed to be transparent.  One of 

the things that is important will be incidence, for example, of domestic abuse.  It may be that we might extend 

to some of the factors that you were talking to as well.  That is a live discussion and decision at the moment.  I 

take on board what you are saying. 

 

The second thing is that I was also very clear that while I do think that fundamental change happens over a 

longer period of time if you are talking about culture change, which I think you need to be in the context of 

violence, I was also very clear that you do need to be having impact immediately as much as you can.  The 

short-term is very, very important.  I do not see the notion of just funding, for argument’s sake - I know this is 

not quite what you were saying - a few things for the next five years, then learning the lessons and applying 

them elsewhere.  That kind of disconnect between what we are doing immediately and how that is translated, 

how that is learnt from and then applied elsewhere -- it is going to be a much shorter timeframe than I think 

that question suggested.   

 

In terms of the money, I do not think it is only that which is preventing us from taking a more pan-London 

approach.  It is something about making sure that we are listening and doing things proportionate to how 

communities experience them.  That might sound a bit convoluted, but I genuinely think there is some 

incredibly good practice going on around London and my sense is to enhance that.  You can only enhance that 

if you understand what is happening and learn from it, rather than take that very classic national to local 

relationship that basically says, “Well, we kind of know.  We will all sit up here and then we will tell you what to 

do in a local environment”.  We have to turn that on its head.  The power shift is therefore really important.  It 

is as much about learning and listening, and then growing from that sort of understanding, as it is about 

money. 

 

Coming on to the money, because I certainly do not want to be putting any barriers around anyone giving us 

any more money, I do think we are in a position where we will be able to attract more money into the VRU.  I 

have had conversations with London Funders.  I have had conversations with the Mayor’s Fund.  I know that 

there are corporates who are interested in putting in some additional money.  Obviously, in the Government’s 

announcement, which we are still waiting for detail on, they were talking about giving some money towards 

VRUs as well.  We have to be careful about how big we scale it, I think.  It is not only money for me, it is about 

the journey of understanding, listening and being able to apply it effectively.  Something like the knife crime 

seed funding, which I am sure you are aware of, gave lots of individual pieces of money to lots of really great 

initiatives.  We are looking with London Funders at how we draw out the lessons from that. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  OK.  You appreciate the tension between working on the cohort who are young adults now 

and working to prevent it in the next?  These are different children that we are talking about. 

 

Page 23



 
 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, I do.  I would temper it by saying that I do not think 

we are talking about a set period of time and therefore the two things are not going to be particularly separate 

for that long.  I still think there needs to be an emphasis on getting it right. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  OK.  Thank you.  Following up on that, in terms of things that you might measure, are you 

thinking that you might measure the proportion of children experiencing ACEs as a potential target?  That is 

something Scotland did not do.  If you set that as a target, you are looking more at whether you are 

succeeding at prevention than simply setting crime figures as your target.  Is that something you are looking at 

doing? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is, but I will be perfectly honest that we are not in the 

position yet of having set out a performance framework.  I think it would be a bit odd if we had, given we have 

not established the full work programme, but certainly I think that is a good challenge and something to 

consider. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  OK.  Finally, you mentioned the stuff already happening in boroughs.  There is already stuff 

happening through City Hall, there is stuff happening through the police and there is also the whole 

enforcement side of things that the police are doing.  How are you going to incorporate all of that into your 

work?  Again, that is not really set out here in the work plan. 

 

Sorry, your question was around the police, was it not? 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Yes, but also other MOPAC initiatives, the Crime Prevention Fund and all of those other 

things. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  They are incredibly important, and we need to align 

them as much as we possibly can.  There is the Young Londoners’ Fund, which is £45 million over three years.  

I have also obviously just talked about the knife crime seed funding.  You have the Crime Prevention Fund.  

There are quite a lot of resources there that need marshalling, making sure that they are joining up with some 

of the initiatives that are being undertaken by the VRU.  I am confident that that will happen. 

 

Sian Berry AM:  Are you seeking to take any of these quite disparate funds - obviously the Young Londoners’ 

Fund is under the Mayor’s budget, but the London Crime Prevention Fund is under MOPAC’s budget.  Are you 

seeking to take one of those under your wing? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I would not put it like that.  What is most important is that 

we work together across City Hall to have maximum impact, and if that requires aligning some of the funding 

then that is the way you would go.   

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  There is a need to look at aligning funding particularly across the social 

inclusion portfolio.   

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  As part of this work, it is crucial that you are working with partners in different 

sectors.  Have you received the necessary buy-in from those for your public health approach? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  What is very heartening is the fact that you have a 

Partnership Reference Group that has all those representatives around it.  I think there have been four or five 

meetings and every organisation has sent somebody to that quite senior within their organisation.  I take that 

as an early indication that they are buying into the unit and the approach.   

Page 24



 
 

 

I think that has been further added to by the fact that the Mayor was very clear that he did not want a big 

team sitting in City Hall and that it was going to be reliant on secondments from those partner organisations.  

Certainly, we are already beginning to see those coming forward.  Public Health England have put forward a 

secondee, as have the MPS.  We are in discussion with Probation, we are in discussion with the local 

authorities, we are talking to London Funders about how best we can have a couple of representatives from 

community organisations work in the unit.  I take that as a stage on from warm words.  It is people sitting in a 

room helping to shape something up.  Then, further, essentially putting their money where their mouth is. 

 

We have had more detailed conversations.  We held a health roundtable at which lots of different parts of the 

health sector were represented, and the question was what they could be doing individually to support the 

work of the VRU.  It was incredibly productive and I think there will be lots of initiatives flowing from that.  I 

intend to do a similar series of roundtables with some of the other public sector agencies based on that model 

because it really was very good. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  The National Health Service (NHS) often are very hard to engage because you 

may get someone locally who is interested but, ultimately, they have different priorities and a different setting 

right up to the Department of Health.  How have you found the hospital trusts and the like in London, 

engaging in this? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I can really only go back to what I just said about the health 

roundtable.  I have to say, perhaps being a bit cynical and perhaps having been in a local authority for a long 

time, I did wonder whether it would be one of those conversations where everybody said, “Yes, it is a great 

idea”, and then left the room.  In fact, it absolutely was not at all.  There were so many initiatives, so much 

enthusiasm, and lots of different parts of the health sector coming forward and being prepared to step up, 

which I am very happy to share with you if you want a more detailed picture.  Yes, it was very positive. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  One of the ways the NHS can engage in the local hospital trusts and London 

can engage is to fully work with you on the Cardiff model, which is something I have been pushing for the last 

decade in London.  We still have two hospital trusts that have not fully engaged in it.  St George’s have 

dropped out.  I think they are now coming back to the table.  Chelsea and Westminster have never been at the 

table, but I think they might be now.  How are you guaranteeing that all of those trusts who are at the table, 

are signed up to this?  Sharing anonymised violence data that comes through accident and emergency helps 

you map those crimes.  It is part of what Scotland have done, using data from hospitals, fire services and social 

services to build up that picture of violent crime. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  It is really important.  You were urging me to go to 

Glasgow and I think a visit to Cardiff would also be really good because the work that they have done there is 

very interesting, particularly, obviously, on this issue.  St George’s was actually raised at the health roundtable 

and action was taken as a result of it.  I think that has been quite helpful in pushing it along.  Chelsea and 

Westminster I did not know about but I will take that up because I completely agree with you. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I have been pushing this.  I wrote to the Mayor earlier in the year and had a 

reply that sounded like we were almost there, but we have been there so many times.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I can find the correspondence.  I will make sure I pick it up.  

I agree with you. 

 

Page 25



 
 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Thank you.  The description in the paperwork was that work with partners is 

“sideways work”.  What does that actually mean in practical terms? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is very interesting, is it not?  “Sideways work”.  It is not a 

description I particularly recognise. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  It was in the paperwork.  I think that is why -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I have to say then that is one of those terrible pieces of 

language that got through. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  It says, “Sideways work with partners in different sectors”.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I do not think there is any significance. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  It is not a particular -- no, OK. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  I think it is whoever invented the ‘egg timer’/‘bow tie’ thing.  Who 

knows? 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  OK.  That was just -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Well, I will look for that and edit that out because those 

kinds of pieces of language always irritate me, frankly. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  I thought this was some new thing that I did not know about, “sideways 

working”. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, no, I am afraid not.   

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  OK.  London is obviously complex.  Lots of people who come into London think 

they can come up with something straight away and they suddenly realise you have 32 boroughs and the City 

[of London Corporation], different public sector arrangements; it is complex.  At a structural level, do you think 

London is set up to be able to deliver this public health approach?  What are the barriers you are finding that 

you have to overcome to deliver it? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I have to say, six weeks in I have been incredibly impressed 

by how many people have signed up and the enthusiasm of people across the piece, both public sector 

partners in City Hall and out in the community.  I would not as yet describe them as “barriers”, if I am honest, 

but I am obviously not naive enough not to realise that I am going to confront barriers and I think it is what 

you have just touched on, it is the complexity.  You look at somewhere like Glasgow and they adopted an 

approach and they could essentially, from the centre, push it through.  Then they thought, “Actually, we 

should work a bit more with some of the communities”, and they were in a position to be able to do that.  I am 

not under any illusion about the levels of complexity both within the organisations and across the 

organisations that we need to work with.  It is important.   

 

Furthermore, I also think - and this is not a platitude - that there is a real pride in being a Londoner and that 

people have expectations of what it means to live in London.  The kind of “London is Open” campaign, the 

notion that London is inclusive, that it is fair and that there is an identity across London as well as multiple 

Page 26



 
 

identities within neighbourhoods as to how people identify themselves, mean that we absolutely have to work 

at something in a different way.  Once you establish the importance of a cause and once you establish the 

means by which you are going to tackle it, I am a genuine believer that if you have that and you can instil that 

common belief in people, the systems and structures should align themselves to that.  There are a hell of a lot 

of barriers in the way but I think you have to go in on that premise with that kind of passion and that kind of 

optimism, or frankly we might as well give up and go home, mightn’t we? 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  OK.  Thank you.  We have talked about complexities at the regional level but 

clearly part of your work is within the national context and I think at one of the earlier VRU Partnership 

Reference Groups it said that this has a role in influencing change and pressing for national systems and 

structures to respond to that and what is needed. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Influencing that national agenda, how would you plan to go about that aspect 

of the role? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I had a very useful meeting yesterday with [The Rt Hon] 

Nick Hurd [MP, Minister for Policing] and I think the Government have been very keen to see what is going on 

in London.  We were talking a language of collaboration and they mentioned the fact that they have put some 

money to one side, although we have no detail at all around the £35 million in the most recent announcement.  

I think there is an enthusiasm at Government level to find out what the blockages are and I will certainly be 

exploiting that in the best way I can, for some of the combined barriers that we learn about from the 

Partnership Reference Group or the things that we hear from the community, to really marshal evidence and 

push for a change in policy.   

 

One of the things I touched on earlier on is around educational challenge and the lack of information around, 

for example, off-rolling, which I think the Mayor has done a good job to highlight through the Office for 

Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills (Ofsted) review.  That is certainly on the Government’s 

agenda, although we have no sign of the Timpson review [Edward Timpson, former Minister for Children], of 

course, which would be quite fundamental to some of this.  That is one way in which we could make sure we 

are influencing policy.  The second is, as we touched on earlier, the media.  It is not only policy changes for 

Governments, sometimes it is looking at practice changes from key institutions.  Again, I think the Mayor is a 

representative of the whole of London.  He has the biggest electoral mandate for somewhere, has he not?  A 

lot of votes. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Outside the President of France. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Thank you, yes.  I think you have to use that, from what 

you hear from London organisations and from London communities.  As long as you have a compelling case, 

you need to be making that to the relevant policy-maker, which in most cases will be Government but not 

exclusively. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  That is interesting.  I was going to go on to school exclusions.  That is 

something you have already discussed with Government, with your meeting with the Minister [for Policing, The 

Rt Hon Nick Hurd MP]? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, I put that on the agenda, but we did discuss it at the 

Partnership Reference Group the last time it met.  We had a presentation from Joanne McCartney [AM, 

Page 27



 
 

Statutory Deputy Mayor] using some of the statistics from City Hall but also a presentation from the guy 

leading the Ofsted review.  It was a useful discussion. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  How will you be using the VRU and how will it be involved in having to make 

the case to Government in this area? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I started by saying that evidence and data are critical, and 

one of the things that we are doing as one of our first pieces of work is a serious homicide review of all the 

cases that there have been over the last year, working with London boroughs.  That will provide us with a really 

good basis of evidence, I hope, and obviously extracting from that therefore what needs to change and using 

that to make the case to Government will be fundamental.   

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  This serious case review is welcome.  Is that similar to what Croydon’s 

safeguarding team have done, which I think is a superb piece of work?   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I completely agree. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  The evidence is unbelievable from that.  It is so powerful.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It really is, is it not?  You look at the 19 kids who were 

vulnerable, 19 of the 60, and they were all excluded from primary school, were they not?  Yes, we are working 

with other London boroughs as well because there are similar pieces of work.  Croydon is the one that sticks 

out most in my mind as well but there are similar pieces of work that Islington have done, for example, and way 

back Lambeth have done as well.  It is making sure that we are drawing on that.  However, yes, it should give 

us that evidence base. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  What about the Home Office in all of this?  How are you planning to work with 

the Home Office?  They are going to be looking to you to see what you might deliver as best practice for the 

country, but also what do you want from them? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I have not, as yet, personally had any connection with the -

- no, that is not true.  I have met one of the lead civil servants in the Home Office.  I think the more we can 

share information, the more we can work with them and contribute to our success, really, and hopefully theirs. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  OK.  Thank you. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  One point I would like to support in Caroline’s questioning is about the 

delivery and pace, comparing this again to when we went to the West Midlands.  Basically, David [Jamieson] 

the Police and Crime Commissioner could press a button with the Chief Constable and then tell about three or 

four district councils, “Get on with it”, and it worked at pace.  We do not compare with that.   

 

Florence Eshalomi AM:  Just on Assembly Member Pidgeon’s last point about the Home Office, again, we 

know that Government have been having a series of meetings both at Downing Street and at the Home Office, 

and the scale of this challenge is actually quite big.  Somebody we both know well, Pastor Lorraine Douglas 

[Director, Dwaynamics] - going back, in a sense, to the frustration that I expressed a number of people on the 

ground are feeling about this agenda - tweeted her frustration about that meeting.  She said that it was good 

to have the access to the Prime Minister [The Rt Hon Theresa May MP] and Cabinet Members, but that they 

were all segregated into different rooms and they do not listen.   

 

Page 28



 
 

It is something I mentioned with Assembly Member [Susan] Hall just before we came to this meeting, in that 

the whole paralysis of Brexit is stopping our Cabinet Ministers getting on with the real key domestic issues.  

How hard do you think that is going to be to get through to the Home Office to deal with this massive 

agenda?   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, you referred to the fact that we both know 

Lorraine very well and she is not somebody - although she is very passionate about what she does - who is 

usually outspoken in the way that she was.  I did take that as a very serious measure of how she felt let down.  

Subsequent to that she had been invited back to another meeting, but it does illustrate the importance of not 

just talking but delivering, and it also illustrates the importance of being able to find space to listen, 

particularly to the community voice.  It seemed, from her interpretation of what happened in that instance, 

that had not taken place.   

 

I have not yet seen any of the notes from the Serious Violence Summit.  I know Sadiq [Khan, Mayor of 

London] obviously was at it, as was Sophie [Linden, Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime] at parts of the 

roundtables that followed, but we are keeping a close eye on it.  As I said before, we are working appropriately 

with them where possible. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  What are your media relations like, as it were? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  My media relations? 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Yes, in the sense of building a profile.  You have an extremely important position.  What I 

am thinking, if you are trying to break through to things, is that it is great for people to know who you are and 

know you are there.  Have you done any big interviews or anything yet? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No.  I have done only one since I have been in the post, 

which was on the second day.  We went to visit an excellent initiative in Croydon which is the Black, Asian and 

Minority Ethnic Network, which was facilitating one of the sports --  

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  You are down in Croydon in every example.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Croydon, yes.  It is my second reference. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  You are mentioning Croydon more than I do.  It is outstanding.  Carry on! 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Sorry. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It was excellent, yes.  I was interviewed then, but no, I have 

not done any other set pieces since then. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Maybe you should try to up it a bit, just to -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I will take advice on that.  I think you are right in the sense 

that you want to use any opportunity to influence the agenda, but equally it is important we are promoting the 

work of the unit. 

 

Peter Whittle AM:  Yes, of course.  That goes without saying. 

 

Page 29



 
 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  That is the challenge because you are conflating the politician with the 

officer. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Absolutely.  That is another challenge as well. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  That bled into that.  All right, that is great.   

 

Susan Hall AM:  What types of roles will you have within your central VRU team? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Thanks.  We are out for recruitment at the moment for the 

central team.  I have already referred to the secondees that are coming in from the public sector agencies.  At 

the moment, we are going to have a senior commissioning manager, somebody essentially to take care of the 

money and to do the due process of getting that money out the door; a programme manager, who will keep 

the work programme on track; and then we have a couple of community engagement officers, who I was trying 

to recruit yesterday.  That is obviously very important to facilitate working closely with different community 

groups but also making sure that we are out of City Hall and working with people.  It is a fairly small team that 

we are recruiting. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Basically, four people and yourself. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, the central team will be a bit bigger than that because 

obviously you have to add in myself, I have personal assistant support and there is a head of the unit as well.  

You are looking at about seven as a central team. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  It will stay at that, will it? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I think so, yes.  It is new, obviously, and we are just setting 

up the team, though obviously a lot of thinking has been done prior to that.  It may be that we find out within 

a year that we need a little bit more data analysis rather than programme management.  We will change that as 

we go along.  In essence, yes, we are looking at about a team of seven. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  OK.  When do you hope that team will be up and running? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I am very much in an interview week.  I am hoping that we 

will have made decisions by the end of next week on those posts and therefore it will very much depend on 

what other people’s employment obligations are.  I would very much hope - what are we in, April [2019] - we 

would be looking at the beginning of July [2019], if not sooner. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  OK.  Obviously, there was so much controversy about the fact you had written your own job 

specification and then got the job.  These people, their job specifications, are they coming through City Hall?  

How transparent are their -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  They are on the website, obviously, because you need to 

promote to be able to recruit. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  I know, but we would not want the same controversy over -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I am sorry, do you want to ask me a question about my 

recruitment or do you want to ask me a question about the team? 

Page 30



 
 

 

Susan Hall AM:  No.  Everybody has had comments about that. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Fine, OK. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Obviously, you want to steer clear of that for the people in the unit.  That has been done 

completely separately and we will be able to look at that, will we? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  It will be advertised in exactly the same way.  It will be 

on the website, as indeed my job was, people will be able to comment and be able to apply in the usual way in 

which you recruit people in an organisation like City Hall. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  OK, thank you. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Deputy Chairman):  We have not talked much about the police so far.  The MPS 

currently has a Violent Crime Task Force, which some of us have been on patrol with and there is some quite 

impressive work being done out there on the streets.  How are you liaising with the MPS to ensure that the 

activities of groups like the [Violent Crime] Task Force and your unit are aligned?  More generally, what has 

been the attitude of the MPS so far to the VRU?  Obviously, it is still in its infancy but just give us a feel of the 

MPS thinking. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  I went along to an MPS strategy meeting in my first 

few weeks, which was with the top tier of the MPS.  That was a good early invitation, perhaps indicative that 

they are keen to work alongside and with the VRU.  I then, subsequently, also took part in another small 

strategy away day.  I meet with [Sir] Steve House [QPM, Deputy Commissioner, MPS] and Cressida Dick [CBE 

QPM, Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis].  They meet with Sadiq [Khan, Mayor of London] every week, 

I think, and I normally go in for a first item, where it is appropriate, just on violence.  I have that mechanism. 

 

I referred earlier to having met one-to-one with Cressida [Dick CBE QPM] and a couple of the other senior 

police officers.  Relations in that sense are very positive.  We have talked, through those meetings, about 

exactly how they can work as one of the public sector partners in shaping up the programme.  They have been 

involved in the Partnership Reference Group and they have also provided a secondee to the unit, one of the 

first organisations to do so. 

 

There is a lot of optimism for how we are going to work together.  It is absolutely critical.  You also reference 

there the work of the [Violent Crime] Task Force, which I agree has some impressive statistics behind it in 

terms of finding knives and doing some effective work. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Deputy Chairman):  This morning, we were given details of the work programme.  I 

have noted an objective, changing the message around violence, this talk of developing a movement against 

violence that draws in ambassadors to promote positive messages.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Deputy Chairman):  When we met - only one meeting so far but hopefully there will be 

more - I did talk about the need to involve the families, friends and relatives of people who have either lost 

their lives or been attacked.  Presumably you are thinking of involving families of victims of all types of crime 

by giving them a prominent role.  They are some of the most powerful and eloquent advocates of any 

anti-knife crime strategy or any anti-violence strategy. 

Page 31



 
 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, I completely agree with you.  I would hope it would be 

more than just around the messaging.  We referred earlier to [Pastor] Lorraine Jones as being an example.  You 

have got lots of incredibly powerful men and women who, unfortunately, have children who have been 

murdered.  They have gone on to do some fantastic grassroots work.  At the business summit last week that 

had been convened, we heard from the Mizen family.  There is loads of stuff that people have been doing.  

You want to engage with the families of victims both in the messaging and in the work programme. 

 

Unmesh Desai AM (Deputy Chairman):  It is important that these ambassadors are given a meaningful role 

and I will tell you why, Lib.  About 18 months ago, two years ago, the Mayor said they were going to have 

modern slavery ambassadors in each borough.  So far, we have not seen any sign of these ambassadors in 

action.  Then it transpires that one of these actual ambassadors, who ought to be some civic figures or local 

well-established community figures, is a police officer, and what he or she is doing in any of the boroughs I 

know not; certainly not in East London.  I think the central lesson of that particular experience is that modern 

slavery ambassadors are non-existent. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK, thank you.  I was not aware of that, but I will take that 

point up, Unmesh.  Thank you. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  OK.  We are now turning to, if we may, local delivery.  We have touched 

upon it, and Navin [Shah AM] and I have some questions around this because our briefing up until 48 hours 

ago was talking about local hubs.   

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Sorry. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  That might have been shot down in flames but what is interesting, more 

practically, is how you are going to deliver.  Going back to this blessed thing, you have local delivery and local 

VRUs which I believed - just speaking for myself - were going to deliver.  This building is not going to deliver.  

This building is going to be a facilitator, part-funder, and out there, arguably other people and groups will 

deliver, logically. 

 

The model that we understood, up to a couple of days ago, was that the local hubs were going to deliver, OK?  

I had seven weeks with Jonathan Toy [Operational Director for Enforcement Services, Barking and Dagenham 

Council], who you all know, is down in Croydon designing Croydon’s one.  We keep talking about Croydon; let 

us talk about somebody else, Lambeth or Lewisham, who are doing that, Southwark and all that sort of stuff.   

 

The model was predicated on this pan-London hub delivery.  That is not happening now.  I am still interested 

in how you are going to deliver, but those local authorities are not going to stop forming their own VRUs.  

They have invested a lot of money in them already, a lot of officer time.  How are you going to work with 

those local borough VRUs if you are not adopting a hub model?  Please help me on this one.  How is it going 

to work? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  Just to go back to what I said earlier on, the rationale 

from changing from something like this was that it felt too imposing a structure to me and it just felt like 

spreading what we had too thinly across London.  That is the principle and that was informed by lots of 

conversations I had with a variety of people, from community to community practitioners’ groups and also to 

when I presented at the Chief Executives meeting. 

 

Page 32



 
 

That is the theory behind it.  If local authorities have set up VRUs, it demonstrates - which I think it does in the 

instances of where I have heard that has happened - an engagement from all the relevant parties in the local 

area, all the relevant organisations alongside and critically, the buy-in of the local community to enhance the 

credibility of that unit.  It seems to me that becomes an obvious point to have a conversation from City Hall 

with the VRU.  In a sense, that becomes the local commissioner, does it not?    

 

In other places where they have not set that up but they have a different structure, I would want to apply the 

same tests, ie is it genuinely working with people?  Is it a genuine example of partnership working in the local 

area?  Is it credible to people who live there?  If it is not called a VRU but it is called some local partnership or 

some variant of it, that then becomes a useful body.   

 

For me, my reticence, which was further enhanced by the kind of conversations I had, was just this notion that 

you had to template out VRUs, every borough had to have its VRU and it had to work on what structures it 

already had and reconfigure them into something that enabled City Hall to be able to look and say, “There is a 

VRU so we can fund that”.   

 

I know good practice is happening around London.  There are many boroughs that are looking at how they 

change the way they approach this issue.  That will then be the appropriate forum. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  I understand the premise of having targeted pilots.  The premise I am 

understanding from you is a model based on targeted areas, targeted pilots that hopefully will be successful.  

Then you can evidence-base that to get more funding, potentially.  I get that. 

 

You talk about the fact that you are going to have, in this organisation, a limited amount of money, but out in 

the boroughs and in the communities they are listening and they are hearing that there is more money coming 

out of City Hall to commission this work. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  There is quite a bit of money coming from City Hall, when 

you add the totality of the things that we talked about earlier on. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  The point I was trying to make before you interceded -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Apologies. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  -- was that the local boroughs will know the right communities that are 

going to deliver.  I was attracted to the hub model because the hub would only be one borough doing the work 

for four or five, but they would be on the ground identifying the community groups best suited to deliver the 

monies that you have got in your back pocket.  That is still something we need to investigate over the coming 

months.   

 

Navin Shah AM:  Lib, I am still seeking clarity, if I may go back to the basics.  Earlier, you said that on local 

hubs you are thinking that your work is still evolving, that it is not set in stone.  I appreciate that you are 

looking at what is going on with London Councils and some of the boroughs that we talked about, including 

Croydon.  Any idea when you are likely to crystallise your thinking, your strategy, whether you are going with 

the local hub model or you are going to look at priority areas and roll it out in that sense?  I think it is about 

seven or eight months since the VRU was announced.  Time is getting on and we need to have a clear thinking, 

clear strategy, so that both the VRU and local authorities can get on with it and we have an impact on that 

violence, which is on the rise. 

 

Page 33



 
 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, I completely agree with you about the urgency.  

Obviously, tomorrow has been mentioned a few times.  It is the Partnership Reference Group, which will get a 

clearer understanding of what the different partners think.  Once, I hope, we get the green light for moving 

ahead, then we have to establish the criteria and obviously start talking to the boroughs that fit that criteria. 

 

I would very much hope that we are in a position at the beginning of June where we can start talking much 

more specifically about what that looks like.  Then we have a challenge because, as has been mentioned 

several times, we have to get the money out the door. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  Yes.  Do you know how many other boroughs than Croydon have got something similar or a 

form of VRU? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Not off the top of my head.  I know, anecdotally, some 

places where they are setting up VRUs; I know some places where they are not necessarily calling them VRUs, 

but they are more or less the same thing.  No, I do not. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  If you can let us know, please, when you get that information. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I can do, once I find out.  Yes, that is fine. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  Yes. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I should say it is my understanding, and this is more in my 

previous role rather than this current role, that lots of different local authorities have looked at how they can 

restructure their services to make sure that this is being dealt with corporately and that it is a priority.  I know 

that has been the case in Lambeth.  I know that is the case in Southwark.  Obviously, we referred to Croydon, 

Waltham Forest; Camden is doing some interesting work with young people; Islington has quite an effective 

gangs unit.  I know that similarly, Westminster has done a lot of work in this area.  There is lots of good 

practice out there, which is partly why I want to go with that grain rather than imposing a VRU template on 

these places. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  Currency of trust is vital to gaining access and the confidence of local communities.  This 

Committee’s investigation into serious violence found that trust between the police and communities is 

especially important to tackling violent crime.  How will you ensure that the VRU has that trust of the local 

community and the local residents and stakeholders, when they are involved both in policy as well as how we 

implement it? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  Two points there.  I referred earlier on to the trust 

issue, particularly from certain communities, between young people and the police.  That is something that we 

have to own as a problem and try to do something about.  I know there are various initiatives across London, 

but I think that you cannot talk about intelligence-led policing if the kind of people we are relying for the 

intelligence feel very remote from the police force that is serving them.  That is a very genuine issue. 

 

In terms of how I would engender trust with communities, in terms of the work with the VRU, it always comes 

back to what sounds like the very basics, but I think it is very basic.  It is listening, it is doing, it is delivering, 

and it is making an impact.  I do not think you can expect people’s trust unless you can walk them along that 

journey and walk with them, critically.  That is what I would be hoping to do.  That would be the ethos, or that 

is the ethos of the team and that is our challenge, quite importantly.  That is why it is incredibly important to 

Page 34



 
 

get out and talk to as many people as possible; rather than inviting them into City Hall, go and see the work 

that is going on across London.  I have done some of that but I intend to do a lot of more of that. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  In your various steering groups, there is community representation.  How many and how do 

you appoint them? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  There are three community representatives on the group 

and also a member of the [GLA] Peer Outreach Team.  There was a commitment made about two months ago 

to expand that to 30% of the group, the community voice around the Partnership Reference Group.  You will 

probably see from the papers that are going there tomorrow, I am proposing that we do that, that 30% of the 

representation is the community voice. 

 

I genuinely do not know the process of how the three people that are on the committee at the moment were 

chosen because that predated my time as the Director of the VRU.  I would say that they are, in many ways, 

the most effective members of the committee because they do provide challenge and that is important.   

 

Navin Shah AM:  My concern is that if there is not a particular emphasis on something like local hubs, which 

have or potentially have more local intelligence and more local involvement, how will you ensure that you have 

the right level of community representation?  Again, what are you doing about, for example, representation of 

the youth on the steering group as well?  The question is: if you move away from the local hub option, how 

will you make sure that communities are duly represented with the right numbers, the right locations and so 

on? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  I would not want to get hooked up on the idea that 

the only way you can deliver representation is through a local VRU model.  I have tried to say several times that 

the principles around local delivery will be the same.  It is just maybe the adherence to the structure that is the 

thing I am challenging.   

 

In any case, in both instances, you are right that the challenge is: how do you make sure there is enough 

community voice in all of these structures?  How do you make sure it is authentic and, therefore, 

representative of the communities that they are serving?  That is a huge topic.  Part of that has to be going 

out, finding out what is being delivered on the ground and making sure that in the structures you are putting 

in place - the Partnership Reference Group will not be the only structure although we are focusing on it at the 

moment because it has been the most obvious - that you are genuinely reflecting that.  As I said, making sure 

there is at least a 30% representation around the table is one way of at least starting that, making sure that 

there are means by which you can capture young people’s voice. 

 

I talked earlier about the part of the work programme that we have identified as an objective but we have not 

fleshed out is because I want the young people to take ownership of that and develop that, making sure that 

on the group that we have got at the moment, you have somebody from the [GLA] Peer Outreach Team.  It is 

also looking at the team that we are recruiting for at the moment and making sure that it is reflective of 

London’s diversity.  Age is one of those criteria as well. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  I am concerned that if you are not careful, you could have a situation where some of the 

boroughs may feel that they are left out and not being part of the whole process.  I can give you a classic 

example of the constituency I represent.  Brent has a big issue about violent crime when you look at the recent 

statistics as well as the history, but Harrow does not have that.  You have bordering neighbourhoods and 

certainly, I do not see why people living in outer London boroughs historically seem to be not having a higher 

Page 35



 
 

level of violent crime.  There is an equal amount, or greater amounts sometimes of perception of crime and 

they are equally concerned about even one incident that happens there.   

 

That is where I would want to make sure that we cover all of London, concerns about violence, whether it is 

real or a perception.  Today we may have less but anything can happen in the future and, therefore, it is 

important that those boroughs also are reassured and feel comfortable that enough is being done to make sure 

of the safety of people in those areas as well. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  I agree with you, the message and some of the central 

work has to be across London.  You cannot be in any way complacent, can you, in any part of London?  It is 

more what we were talking about with just the homing in on certain places to extract the better practice.   

 

Steve, sorry, can I just say it is 11.30am and I was down for an hour? 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  I was not informed that there was a time limit on this. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK, I was. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  I was not, so there is a breakdown there and we have one more set of 

questions. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK, that is fine.   

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  It sometimes takes two and a half hours, this Committee. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I have something at 12.00pm, that is all. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Yes, all right.  Let us just say these meetings are set for two hours 

certainly and your office did not filter its way through to the Chair. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK, fine.  I am not immediately needed, so that is fine. 

 

Navin Shah AM:  One last question and that is regarding funding.  There is allocation of £5 million this year.  

How will that work in terms of allocations to boroughs?  When will we know the whole programme and what 

the strategies and criteria are for funding for utilising this £5 million? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  The budget this year is £6.8 million and there is an 

expectation, a mayoral expectation, that £5 million of that is spent out on the local delivery.  As I have just 

outlined, I would be hopeful that we are in a position to know the criteria and have some of those 

conversations about delivery mechanisms soon, at the beginning of June [2019].  Obviously, the challenge is 

how you then spend the money and push the money outwards.  That is part of another challenge.   

 

In terms of the £1.8 million held more centrally, that will be to enable work to happen also across London.  To 

address your earlier concern, there is a sense that all of London would be benefitting, not just a few places. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  You quite certainly indicated that rather than have a set model of local hubs, you want 

boroughs themselves to come up with their own solutions because you said there were delivery systems already 

imposed.  Can you name some of those?  Can you name some of those delivery systems that are already in 

place that will be able to deliver? 

Page 36



 
 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I think I referred to some, just in general. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  You did refer to some things in general which are part of the public health approach.  You 

did not seem to indicate anything that would bring together many agencies in one place to be able to deliver 

the system. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  I cannot give you the complete answer that you want 

so I am not going to pretend to.  What I will go back to mention again is that there will obviously be criteria.  It 

is open and transparent; it is not just phoning up a few boroughs and saying, “Look, we have got £5 million.  

How do you want to distribute it?”  Quite clearly, there needs to be open, transparent criteria that we are 

working on that would include things like domestic abuse.  Sian [Berry AM] has given me the challenge of 

whether we would include ACEs as criteria but that is being worked on. 

 

After that, you then start to look at the delivery capacity in some of those boroughs that have fulfilled the 

criteria.  What I was saying in parallel to that was that there are some places where I know they are beginning 

to pull agencies together in a kind of VRU way, are adopting a public health approach and are working very 

closely with the community.  I do not know that exhaustively across London and I would absolutely need to 

and want to. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  If you could write to us with some examples of that? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Of course, yes.  Absolutely. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  From my perspective, I am wondering why it is we are trying to reinvent things like 

Multiagency Safeguarding Hubs where already you have a successful multiagency delivery, you already have 

people sitting in the same room.  I just wondered why you would do another one and another one for 

multiagency working when actually the model is already there. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  In a sense - and I do not want to put words in your mouth - 

I think you are agreeing with my earlier premise that we do not want to suddenly find a new structure and put 

it into a place.  We need to work with what is in existence, which is why I was a little bit -- 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  Would you also have in mind, therefore, if we have very variable ways of delivering on the 

public health approach, that we are able to measure the key performance indicators (KPIs)?  There are a lot of 

statistics in -- 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Measurables are in the next question.  Andrew, get to the point that you 

are inevitably going to get to. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  No, I am going to leave it there because Andrew [Dismore AM] is going to raise that in the 

next question. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Did you have anything else?  Sure? 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  No, that is it.  Fine.  Thank you very much. 

 

Page 37



 
 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  On the point that was raised about certain structures working, in many 

places they have not been working and so it is worth reinventing them.  Now the last set of questions, 

Andrew? 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  OK.  Measuring success has already been flagged up -- 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  Several times. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  -- several times and I would like to just focus on that.  The first and obvious question 

is: how are you going to measure short, medium and long-term success for the VRU?  What are your objectives 

like that? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  If we trace back to the objectives that I referred to, we are 

trying to stabilise and reduce violence.  That is a pretty clear indicator.  We are trying to interrogate the causes 

of violence and therefore have effective interventions.  That could lead you to measuring things like cases in a 

particular place, possibly.  You are also looking at people’s perceptions of how safe they feel and how inclusive 

they feel London is.  Both of those are things that you would measure through polling, I would imagine. 

 

We have a variety of different ways to test out those three strands, but we have not as yet, as I said earlier on, 

landed on exactly the way in which we do that or indeed develop the KPIs.  All I am certain of is that we 

absolutely need KPIs and that they need to align with the work programme, which we are hopefully going to 

be agreeing fairly soon.  It becomes a bit chicken-and-egg and I apologise for that, but I cannot -- 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  That is the next question in the sense that objectivity is what we are looking for, 

objective criteria, and, as Andrew [Boff AM] says and as you have just accepted, KPIs with objective numbers 

in them are important. 

 

Are we saying that what we are looking at are clear, objective figures for the reduction of death through 

violence, the reduction of domestic violence, the reduction of injuries through violence, violent crime and so 

on?  Are we looking at, first of all, benchmarking, I suppose, and then seeing how those numbers progressively 

go down? 

 

The reason I raise that is that in Scotland for the first five years is was working very well and it seems to have 

plateaued since then with the number of homicides staying more or less the same and injuries through violence 

ticking up slightly.  Somebody called it going for the low-hanging fruit first. 

 

How do you make sure that, if we are seeing that in the medium term, in the long term that trend continues?  

How are we going to measure it in an objective way rather than saying subjectively that this is all very good 

and wonderful? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  It is a real challenge and one that I am not going to be able 

to provide an answer for now - I will be completely honest with you - but I am very happy to discuss at a later 

date when we have done more thinking around it. 

 

What we have touched on today is the complexity of the causes and the complexity of the challenge in the 

institutions and therefore there is not going to be a very straightforward way in which we can measure it, but I 

accept the principle of course that we need to find some way in which we can measure it.  That needs to be 

something that people can understand and relate to and that is transparent and that gives us an indication of 

Page 38



 
 

what progress is being made.  Therefore, it needs to be flexible and sensible enough to adhere to a short 

timeframe and a bit longer. 

 

I am genuinely sorry, but I am not going to pretend that we have worked all of that out because we have not. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  I understand that, but inevitably, if you do not have KPIs set from City Hall or set from 

MOPAC, the outside world will start to impose its own KPIs.  You can be sure that the media, for example, will 

be keeping a very close eye on the number of offences and will be measuring you against that. 

 

When do you think you will be in a position to set KPIs publicly for you to be measured against? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Just before we do that, one thing that I always think is 

quite interesting from some of the projects that I worked on in my previous role is that you just talked about 

MOPAC and City Hall determining the KPIs, and sometimes we miss a trick there because it would be really 

interesting to get some of the community to help us develop what they think are the right KPIs.  That is 

something I would be interested in exploring, particularly maybe in relation to some of the local delivery.  If 

one of the key objectives here is for people to feel safer, which it is, and for young people to feel more at the 

heart of shaping their society in a positive and constructive way, then I would be interested in conversations 

with them about what they see as the measurables.  What is the real test for them of how we have succeeded 

or not? 

 

It is quite a complex piece of work, but, sitting in front of a scrutiny Committee, I realise that the work is going 

to be scrutinised and not only in these circles; it is going to be scrutinised from the media.  There is going to 

have to be something that you can track the impact of the work. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  Certainly, I accept all you have said about looking at local delivery, but in the end, we 

do have to have something that is objective.  Subjectively, whether people feel safe is difficult to measure.  If 

you do it by polling of some sort, then it comes down to what the question is and so forth.  Key, objective 

numbers are really important. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  I have heard what you have said and certainly, when 

we are having that discussion, I will be mindful of it. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  What evaluation mechanisms are you going to build in? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes, that is very important and, again, something that is a 

bit further down the line, I am afraid, because, as I have said, we are developing a programme now and then 

we are going to have to look at how we would evaluate that as part of the criteria and the KPIs that would flow 

from it. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  The last point is following on from what you have just said and from what Peter 

[Whittle AM] was asking about earlier on.  How are you going to communicate with Londoners and with 

stakeholders such as us about what you are doing and the impact you are having? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  That is a really important challenge and we have to think 

outside the box because, if we again look at the constituency that we are most keen on working with, it is 

young people and young people do not communicate in the same ways that we might assume.  The newsletter 

through the door is not going to do the job, is it?  A social media campaign designed by young people may 

Page 39



 
 

well do more of a job.  Once we are up and running in terms of a work programme, we absolutely want to be 

communicating and there is a challenge to communicate with the different stakeholders. 

 

Breaking it down, there is a piece of communication that is needed inside City Hall, a regular update probably 

every week.  There is a challenge around working and communicating with all the stakeholders.  I would say 

that the stakeholders have the same responsibility on them as well.  If we are looking at prioritising violence 

throughout all of their workstreams, then we want them contributing, not just being recipients of that 

information.  That is a key part of it.  Thirdly, how do we do more of the public stuff?  It will be a variety of 

messages.  City Hall has done some quite interesting things on social media, particularly around the knife crime 

campaign.  I want to be looking at the lessons learned from that and seeing how we can then communicate 

most effectively. 

 

Andrew Dismore AM:  If we look at your team of seven, is somebody going to be specifically tasked with 

communicating outside? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No.  We will also draw on some of the resources that there 

are across the organisation.  That is important.  This is a partnership role.  The whole principle of the way we 

are trying to work differently is not assuming that the VRU itself has to do everything.  It is looking out and 

making sure that everybody sees it as on their agenda and therefore everyone is contributing to it, which is I 

suppose part of the rationale behind the secondees coming in from different organisations and, certainly, 

would be part of my rationale.  Thinking across the piece about the resources that we have in City Hall, given 

that it is a mayoral priority and the importance of this to Londoners, we need to marshal what resources there 

are internally to make sure that we are giving ourselves the best chance of communicating effectively. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Am I right in saying that the public health approach was started in Lambeth under you a year 

ago? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  We started exploring public health as an approach in 2015.  

That was the first time we did some work, but we actually shaped that up properly in a cabinet report in 

March 2018, yes. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  You must have given thought then as to how you would prove that it was working and was 

delivering as a Leader of the Council?  I know that is what I did.  Is the money that is going into this being well 

spent?  Given then that you have been thinking about it since 2014, you must have been thinking since 2014 

about how we do measure these various different things.  Given that you must have been thinking about it 

since 2014, what measurables did you put in in Lambeth when you put it in a year ago? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I am mindful of the earlier conversation about confusion of 

roles.  I thought I am here as a civil servant representing the VRU. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes, but we draw on our thought processes from beforehand.  Given that -- 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  OK.  I just wanted to check in.  That is all. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  It will not do any harm. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I do not want to create the wrong perception. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  No, it is fine. 

Page 40



 
 

 

Susan Hall AM:  We learn things at school and we can repeat them and we use them.  Given that you have 

been thinking about this since 2014, in any roles that you have had, what thoughts have you given to delivery 

and how we measure that delivery? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  The lessons I learned from Lambeth generally were the 

importance of the whole interrelationship between different forms of violence -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  None of us disagree with that, but we are looking at measurables and how you measure 

success. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  It was quite personal, actually.  I was interested in -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  What successes in that did you measure in Lambeth or did the Council measure in Lambeth? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  We did measure successes and failures, and we did 

not start in 2014.  I said -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Sorry, I have that date from your comments. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  No, I should be clear.  No, that is fair enough.  I said we 

started thinking about that.  We actually took a paper to our cabinet in March 2018.  In terms of the things 

that we would assess, we would look at the work of the Violence Against Women and Girls Programme, which 

we had pioneered.  We would look at, for example, some of the referrals that came through from the 

community -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  Yes.  What KPIs did you put in in Lambeth?  What KPIs did you put in so that you could 

measure whether it was successful or not? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Fairly traditional KPIs in terms of all of our work around the 

impact of crime in the Borough of Lambeth.  We would draw on MPS data and we would also add -- 

 

Susan Hall AM:  You did measure it properly in Lambeth? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Sorry, do you want me to finish? 

 

Susan Hall AM:  I am mindful that you are saying that you have to go.  We are very keen that we have things 

that are measurable because there are millions and millions of pounds of taxpayers’ money going into this, 

which is great because we are all agreed that we need something to reverse the situation we are in now.  You 

were doing it in Lambeth and so obviously you have had thoughts about this for quite a long time.  Given that 

thousands of pounds must have gone into it there, you must have had thoughts about how to measure the 

success of a specific project that you are doing. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  I go back to, I suppose, what I said originally, which 

was that there are different things you could measure.  Some of the things that we measured in Lambeth were 

around things like the amount of domestic abuse that was going on in the Borough, but we also added to that 

by looking at the sustainability of certain projects, through how many referrals came from the community and 

how many self-referrals there were, rather than just the number of people who went through the Gaia Centre. 

 

Page 41



 
 

That is the approach that I would want to adopt here, a more well-rounded one than just looking at how many 

numbers have dropped in terms of homicides over this particular period.  You need to do some of that crunchy 

stuff alongside some of the stuff that indicates whether a project is reaching the right people and is having the 

right impact.  That blend of those two things, which was complicated enough in the London Borough of 

Lambeth, is going to be even more complicated when you start looking at it across London.  I know it is 

frustrating, but I am not about to give, I am afraid, a performance framework because we genuinely have not 

had the space or the time to be able to develop that, but those are the kinds of things I would think of. 

 

Susan Hall AM:  The problem is that we are so used to not having things that are properly measurable from 

within the Knife Crime Strategy and everything else.  We are keen to make sure that taxpayers’ money is spent 

properly and with things that are not just going to be talking shops or listening shops.  We must make sure 

that we get good results from the money that is being spent. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I have heard that concern and I still cannot answer that 

question, but what I can do is say that all of my local authority experience - given that you were drawing on it - 

was around delivery and that is a really important component.  I have talked a lot about how people judge us.  

It will be about what we deliver.  I am not at all complacent about the importance of having some measurables 

that are transparent and understood and really get us under the skin of what we are trying to tackle here and 

can therefore use to good effect.  I cannot answer the question in any more ways, I am afraid. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  It is a fair question because, if you are putting public money out to 

organisations, those organisations are set targets because they are delivering public funding.  The [Police and 

Crime] Committee, for the record, will expect KPIs and a performance framework and we will scrutinise that. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  It is a very simple question.  There are other questions I wanted to ask you, but it was a bit 

of a bombshell to know that you have to go so quickly, if I may say. 

 

I still do not get the idea of when we are going to get the performance framework.  When is that going to 

happen? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  As I have mentioned, we are looking first off to agree the 

work programme.  We are then looking to put into place the commissioning framework.  Through both of 

those processes we will start doing thinking around the performance framework -- 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  I understand the stages, but when?  A date? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Given that I would be giving each of those areas of 

programme work some timeframe, I would assume that by July [2019] we would be in a position where we 

would have a much clearer idea about some of the performance framework measurements. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  July [2019], and then presumably we will have the KPIs and measures for success by the 

time you have finished the performance framework? 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  That is what I meant by the performance framework.  That 

is what you were saying. 

 

Andrew Boff AM:  That is absolutely fine.  Thank you very much. 

 

Page 42



 
 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  It seems to me from our discussion today that probably later in the year [2019] 

we will want to have you back - obviously subject to the Chairman - to talk through as you are getting into 

your work more, and you are surer about it all. 

 

Will you through that work really strengthen what you are doing around domestic violence and vulnerable 

adults?  Although it has been mentioned, everything always comes back to young people.  Even for the 

community representatives, it is all about young people.  I am not saying that young people do not experience 

domestic violence, but it feels to me that that strain of work is pushed back. 

 

Also, I could not find it in our paperwork, Chairman, but we discussed beforehand the issue that - I cannot 

remember the figure - a lot of these tragic deaths on the street are of over-25-year-olds.  They are not under 

25.  In your papers, you are focusing on under-25s.  It is just about how you get that balance because you are 

there, as you have said, for all violent crime, but it feels to me that the dialogue always goes back to young 

people.  I am not saying that that is not important, but we want the focus elsewhere as well. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  Yes.  As I said before, I recognise that challenge and I 

completely agree with the premise of your question.  Therefore, yes, I would very much hope that it is much 

more evident when I come back later in the year [2019], yes. 

 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM:  Great.  Thank you. 

 

Lib Peck (Director, Violence Reduction Unit):  I am also very happy and interested to hear your thoughts 

in advance of that.  I am quite genuine in that.  I have had some constructive conversations with people around 

the table who did indicate they wanted to meet with me in advance of this.  I am very happy to do so because I 

do genuinely believe it is an incredibly complex area and the more brains we have on it and the more common 

endeavour we have behind it, the better we are going to end up doing. 

 

Steve O’Connell AM (Chairman):  OK.  Thank you, Lib.  The [Police and Crime] Committee will take a very 

keen interest as this evolves.  You have heard that already.  I am sure my colleagues in Croydon will be deeply 

upset that their plans to annex all of the southeast London are now up the Kybosh and that they will not be 

able to take over all the VRUs in Lewisham and everywhere else.  That is interesting.  All right.  Again, can I 

thank you? 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44



                                                                      

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Summary List of Actions  
 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 23 May 2019 
 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report sets out for noting actions arising from previous meetings of the Committee.  

 

 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the completed and ongoing actions arising from previous 

meetings of the Committee, as listed in the report. 

 

Meeting of 30 April 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

7. 

 

London Violence Reduction Unit 

 

  

 During the course of the discussion, the Director 

of the Violence Reduction Unit (VRU) undertook 

to: 

 Urge Chelsea and Westminster Hospital to 

share anonymised data relating to injuries 

from violence to persons who presented at 

their accident and emergency department; 

 Consider how families and victims of 

violence could support anti-knife crime 

strategies as ambassadors, using the lessons 

learned about the limited impact of the 

Mayor’s modern slavery ambassadors;  

 

 

In progress Director VRU 

Page 45

Agenda Item 4



 

 

 
 Provide a list of local authorities and groups 

of local authorities where they were 

establishing local violence reduction units or 

the equivalent to adopt a public health 

approach to tackling violence; 

 Provide existing examples of multi-agency 

working, through which a public health 

approach to tackle violence was being used; 

and 

 Once they had been agreed, to share the 
key performance indicators for the VRU with 
the Committee. 

 

  

 Authority was delegated to the Chair of the 

Committee in consultation with the Deputy Chair, 

party Group Lead Members and Caroline 

Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree any output from the 

discussion. 

 

In progress Senior Policy Adviser 

8 Police and Crime Committee Work 

Programme 

 

The Committee agreed that, in relation to urgent 

matters only, a general delegation of authority d 

in respect of the Committee’s powers and 

functions (apart from those that cannot under the 

Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 

be delegated) to the Chairman of the Committee, 

in consultation with the party Group Lead 

Members of the Committee and Caroline Pidgeon 

MBE AM, from the close of this meeting until the 

next meeting of the Committee on 14 May 2019, 

subject to agreement of the calendar of meetings 

at the Annual Meeting of the London Assembly 

on 2 May 2019. 

 

 

 

 

This delegation 

was not used. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 6 March 2019 

Page 46



 

 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS)  

 

  

 A briefing will be arranged with MOPAC and MPS 

on Community engagement. 

 

In progress Senior Committee 

Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to provide: 

 Up to date figures for domestic homicides, 

and an explanation of any changes in the 

classification in relation to the figures; 

 Updates on Operation Dauntless Plus and 

Operation Athena, which were tackling 

domestic abuse;  

 

 

In progress – the 

Chairman wrote to 

the Deputy 

Commissioner on 

14 March 2019. 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

  Figures on the MPS’s use of “Right to 

Know” under Clare’s Law; and 

 An explanation of the differences in the 

process at a local level for recording and 

investigating allegations of domestic abuse 

and then closing those cases when there are 

no further lines and screening out alleged 

crimes. 

 

  

 In addition, the Deputy Commissioner was 

requested to respond to the following questions: 

 

EU Exit 

 Is the MPS fully prepared for any additional 

operational pressures resulting from the 

UK’s exit from the Europe Union? 

 What preparations have been made in 
terms of abstractions, cancellation of rest 
days, and mutual aid? 

  

Page 47



 

 

 
 Where does EU Exit sit on the MPS’s risk 

register?  

 In July 2018, HM Inspectorate of 

Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services 

released a report called ‘Understanding the 

Difference’ which was about police forces 

response to hate crime.  The report stated:  

‘We have shown in our report that incidents 

of hate crime ‘spike’ after national events. 

So there is a real possibility that there will be 

a similar increase in reports in 2019 if, as is 

anticipated by the government, the United 

Kingdom formally leaves the European 

Union. Police forces should prepare for this 

eventuality and make sure that the 

recommendations in this report are used in 

the future to improve the police response to 

hate crime victims.’ 

 Do you share the concerns of the 

Inspectorate that there is a real risk of a rise 

in hate crime and if so, what are you doing 

to prepare for this?  

  

 
 What are the contingencies which are in 

place to replace these EU tools?  Is the MPS 

satisfied that it can operate effectively 

under these arrangements? 

 Have MPS officers been trained to use these 

new contingency procedures?   

  

Page 48



 

 

 
The Met’s ‘PartnershipPlus’ scheme 

 You have set out details of a new scheme, 

the PartnershipPlus scheme, to replace the 

current Met PatrolPlus scheme. Why have 

you chosen this new scheme and what other 

options were considered? 

 One of the reasons given for the review of 

the scheme is the pressures on borough 

budgets. Has there been evidence of 

boroughs pulling out of the current scheme 

on financial grounds? 

 How many officers will be affected by 

changes to the scheme? 

 Prior to this announcement the Mayor said 

that officers coming to the end of Met 

Patrol Plus contracts would be reallocated 

to duties within the Basic Command Unit.  Is 

that going to be the case for officers who 

do not transfer over to the new scheme? 

 Where Met Patrol Plus officers do not 

continue under the new scheme, will they 

be retained in the BCU in which they 

currently operate? 

 How many boroughs have registered an 

interest in the new scheme? 

  

    

 

 

Meeting of 12 February 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

4. 

 

 

 

 

 

Safer Neighbourhood Boards and Ward 

Panels 

 

The Committee agreed to delegate authority to 

the Chairman, in consultation with party Group 

Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to 

agree any output from the discussion. 

 

 

 

 

In progress  

 

 

 

 

Senior Policy Adviser 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49



 

 

 

Meeting of 6 February 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to: 

 Share calendar-year data for the sanction 

detection rates for murder in London;  

 Provide the number of police officers who had 

received unconscious bias training and update 

the Committee on the impact of that training; 

 Provide the percentage of complaints that had 

been withdrawn after seeing body-worn videos; 

 Provide the number of complaints that were 

being upheld after the viewing of body-worn 

video, compared to those that were upheld 

before its introduction; and 

 Provide an update on any progress since the 

MPS tested predictive crime mapping software 

in 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 26 March 

 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 23 January 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

4. 

 

 

 

 

 

Stop and Search 

 

During the course of the discussion, Neena 

Samota, undertook to: 

 

 Provide evidence of the disproportionate 

impact on BAME groups of stop and searches 

under Section 60 of the Police and Criminal 

Evidence Act 1994 and evidence of Section 

being used without good reason. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – the 

Deputy Chair 

wrote to Neena 

Samota on 

30 January 2019.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Neena Samota 

 

 

 

 

Page 50



 

 

 The Committee agreed to delegate authority to 

the Chairman, in consultation with party Group 

Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to 

agree any output from the discussion.  

 

In progress Senior Policy Adviser 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 10 January 2019 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner, MPS, undertook to: 

 Update the Committee on the outcome of the 

Crown Prosecution Service examinations into 

three test cases related to demonstrations 

outside Parliament in the run up to the exit 

from the European Union;   

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 26 March 

2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Brief the Committee in due course on the 

MPS’s examination of the use of “released 

under investigation” and bail measures, in the 

context of recent legislation;  

 Confirm the number of detectives currently 

employed by the MPS; 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 Confirm whether the Equality Impact 

Assessment on the Gangs Matrix has been 

completed and if not, when it will be expected 

to be completed; 

 Inform the Committee about how the mental 

health investigation teams were helping 

frontline police officers deal with demand 

arising from persons with mental health issues; 

and 

 Confirm with the Committee the procedures for 

collecting data about sexual harassment within 

the MPS.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 51



 

 

7 Police and Crime Committee Work 

Programme 

 

The Committee delegated authority to the 

Chairman, in consultation with party Group Lead 

Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to make 

arrangements for site visits to the Metropolitan 

Police Marine Policing Unit and a police custody 

suite. 

 

 

 

 

In progress. 

 

 

 

Senior Committee 

Officer 

 

 

Meeting of 29 November 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and Metropolitan Police Service 

(MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the 

Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis and 

Assistant Commissioner, MPS, undertook to 

provide: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 
 The materials that the MPS provided to schools 

to educate young people about their rights in 

relation to stop and searches both under 

section 1 of the Police and Criminal Evidence 

Act 1984 and section 60 of the Criminal Justice 

and Public Order Act 1994; 

 

Partially 

completed: the 

PACE part has 

recently been 

answered through 

a response to a 

Mayor’s Question. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



 

 

Meeting of 31 October 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

7. Police and Crime Committee Work 

Programme 

 

That authority be delegated to the Chairman, in 

consultation with party Group Lead Members and 

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to make arrangements 

for site visits to Metropolitan Police Service Basic 

Command Units.  

 

 

 

 

 

In progress. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Senior Committee 

Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 4 October 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

6. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime 

(MOPAC) and the Metropolitan Police 

Service (MPS) 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Deputy 

Commissioner undertook to provide: 

 An estimate, when available, of the cost of 

running the Airwave contract and the delayed 

Emergency Services Network (ESN) contract 

simultaneously, as part of a phased 

implementation of ESN; and 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

was made on 

26 March 2019. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 
 Findings, when available, for the reasons in the 

increase in 999 calls both nationally and in 

London. 

  

 The Committee also requested a response to the 

following question on antisocial behaviour: 

 

What progress has there been in assessing the 

Antisocial Behaviour Warning Notice Scheme in 

Tower Hamlets and piloting it in the Central North 

area? 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



 

 

Meeting of 5 September 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Metropolitan Police  

 

During the course of the discussion the Deputy 

Mayor for Policing and Crime undertook to: 

 Inform the Committee of the anticipated 

savings from the disposals of police stations 

and police front counters during this financial 

year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 

26 March 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MOPAC 

 

 

 

 

 During the course of the discussion the 

Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis 

undertook to: 

 Confirm the number of police officers who 

had to go to hospital because they were spat 

at or bitten during the Notting Hill Carnival; 

and 

 Provide a briefing on the evaluation of the 

pilot of the use of spit guards in custody 

suites. 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on  

26 March 2019. 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 4 July 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Metropolitan Police  

 

During the course of the discussion, the 

Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), 

undertook to provide: 

 Information in respect of the number of 

people detained as a result of the automated 

facial recognition pilot; 

 

 

 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 26 March 

2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54



 

 

  Confirmation of whether Transport for 
London’s cameras at Stratford Station were 
used in the automated facial recognition pilot; 

 Confirmation as to whether the MPS shared 

any intelligence with South Wales Police to 

help them compile their watchlist around 

organised crime groups linked to music 

festivals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting of 6 June 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

5. 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Metropolitan Police  

 

During the course of the discussion, the Assistant 

Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), 

undertook to provide: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 
 An update on the length of time the MPS was 

taking to examine forensically material relating 

to child exploitation cases; and 

 The number of times the MPS had applied for 

extensions of police bail in the last year, and 

how many individuals this accounted for. 

 

In progress – a 

follow up request 

for the action was 

made on 26 March 

2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

 

 

Meeting of 15 May 2018 

 

Minute 

item 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Question and Answer Session with the 

Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and 

Metropolitan Police Service 

 

During the course of the discussion, the Assistant 

Commissioner, Metropolitan Police Service (MPS), 

undertook to provide: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MPS 

 

 
 Information about how the MPS ensures that it 

communicated with individuals, as well as 

community groups, in order to build the 

intelligence picture when it deployed the 

Violent Crime Task Force to an area; 

In progress - a 

follow up request 

was made on 

26 March 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

  Confirmation of how many trials concerning 

rape and serious sexual assault had been 

abandoned in the last year;  

 Confirmation of how many rape and serious 

sexual assault cases where a decision still 

needed to be made as whether to abandon the 

trial or not; 

 Confirmation of how many harassment and 

how many fraud cases had been reviewed; 

 Confirmation as to whether any of the 

harassment and fraud cases, which had been 

reviewed for disclosure, had been abandoned 

as a result and how many decisions remained to 

be taken; and 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Information about the ways new recruits were 

assessed to ensure that officers are suitable to 

work with London’s diverse communities. 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 

Page 56



 

 
Complaints about the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime and the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime 
(DMPC) 

 

Subject and action required Status Action by 

 

Deadline, 

if 

applicable  

Complaints about the Mayor's 

Office for Policing and Crime and 

the Deputy Mayor for Policing and  

Crime (DMPC) 

   

The Committee agreed, inter alia, to 

delegate to the Monitoring Officer all of 

the powers and functions conferred on 

it by the Elected Local Policing Bodies 

(Complaints and Misconduct) 

Regulations, with the exception of the 

functions set out at Part 4 of the 

Regulations which may not be 

delegated; and guidance on the 

handling of complaints which requires 

the Monitoring Officer to report, on a 

regular basis, the summary details (such 

as can be reported in public), on the 

exercise of any and all of these 

functions to the Committee for 

monitoring purposes. 

 

 

No disclosures to report from 

the period from  

3 May 2019 to 14 May 2019. 

 

Monitoring 

Officer 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Transparency Procedure    

The Committee agreed Members 

disclose to the Executive Director of 

Secretariat or his nominated 

representative (within 28 days of 

the contact) details of any significant 

contact with the MPS and/or MOPAC 

which they consider to be relevant to 

the work of the Committee; and such 

disclosures be reported to the next 

meeting of the Committee. 

 

No disclosures to report for 

the period from  

3 May 2019 to 14 May 2019. 

 

 

Executive 

Director of 

Secretariat 

n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

 

3. Legal Implications 
 

3.1   The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

4. Financial Implications 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

 

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer  

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

Email: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

  
 

 

 
 
 

Page 58

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 
 

 

Subject: Response to the Committee’s Letter 
on Setting Local Policing Priorities and 
Tackling Neighbourhood Crime 

 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 23 May 2019 
 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 

 

1. Summary  

 

1.1 The Committee is asked to note the response from the Mayor to its letter on setting local policing 

priorities and tackling neighbourhood crime. 

 

 

2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the response from the Mayor to its letter on setting local 

policing priorities and tackling neighbourhood crime, as attached at Appendix 1 to the 

report. 

 

 

3. Background   
  

3.1 On 19 November 2018 Members visited Tower Hamlets to meet with Safer Neighbourhood Board 

(SNB), Ward Panel and Victim Support representatives to talk about the impact of borough 

priorities.  Seven crimes, including burglary, robbery and theft, make up close to half of all crime 

recorded by the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS).  The Police and Crime Plan put in place a system 

of ‘borough priorities’ to tackle these types of crimes, in which every borough picks two crimes from 

the seven and focuses efforts on tackling them.  The Committee also sought the views of other SNB 

and Ward Panel representatives to find out how well understood the priority setting process is; and 

discussed the difference that borough priorities can make with the MPS and the Mayor’s Office for 

Policing and Crime. 

 

3.2 Following the conclusion of that scrutiny investigation, the former Chairman wrote to the Mayor on 

19 March 2019.  The letter is here1. 

 

 

                                                 
1 https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/pcc_chair_letter_to_mayor_vru_131218.pdf 

Page 59

Agenda Item 5

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/pcc_chair_letter_to_mayor_vru_131218.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/pcc_chair_letter_to_mayor_vru_131218.pdf


        

3.3 In the letter, the Committee recommended that the Mayor reviews the effectiveness of local priority 

setting including:  

 An assessment of how wider changes, such as the introduction of the crime investigation 

policy, more telephone investigations and the increase in the volume and complexity of crime, 

may be impacting on the success of local priorities, and how this can be mitigated. 

 An assessment of falling victim satisfaction in the MPS’s response to these most        

commonly-reported crimes, and how this will be addressed. 

 Specific actions to improve transparency of data, such as sanction detection rates, which can 

be used to assess the success of this approach and the potential impact on crimes not selected 

as local priorities. 

 Specific actions to improve the awareness and understanding of Londoners about the 

rationale, aims, and measures for the success of local priorities. 

 

 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 

4.1 The Mayor wrote to the former Chairman on 3 May 2019 with his response to the recommendations 

set out in the letter from the Chairman.  The letter from the Mayor is attached at Appendix 1 to this 

report for the Committee to note. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in the report. 

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: 

 

Appendix 1: Letter to the former Chairman from the Mayor, dated 3 May 2019. 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

  

Contact Officer: Teresa Young, Senior Committee Officer 

Telephone: 020 7983 6559 

E-mail: teresa.young@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 60

mailto:teresa.young@london.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject:  Hate Crime  
 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
 

Date: 23 May 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 

 

 
 
1. Summary  
 
1.1 This report serves as a background paper to a discussion on hate crime in London.  

 

 

2. Recommendations 

 

2.1 That the Committee notes the action taken by the Chair under delegated authority, in 

consultation with the party Group Lead Members, to agree the scope for the Committee’s 

investigation of hate crime. 

 

2.2 That the Committee notes the report as background to the discussion on hate crime in 

London and notes the subsequent discussion. 

 

2.3 That the Committee delegates authority to the Chair of the Committee, in consultation 

with party Group Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree any output from 

the discussion.  

 
 

3. Background  
 
3.1 Hate crime is defined as “any criminal offence which is perceived by the victim or any other person, 

to be motivated by hostility or prejudice based on a person's race or perceived race; religion or 

perceived religion; sexual orientation or perceived sexual orientation; disability or perceived disability 

and any crime motivated by hostility or prejudice against a person who is transgender or perceived 

to be transgender."1    

 

3.2 Not all hate incidents reported to the police are counted as hate crimes. A hate ‘incident’ is “any 

incident which the victim, or anyone else, thinks is based on someone’s prejudice towards them 

because of their race, religion, sexual orientation, disability or because they are transgender.” The 

incident is counted as a hate crime when a criminal offence occurs.2 

                                                 
1 Metropolitan Police, What is hate crime  
2 This includes, for example, assaults; criminal damage; hate mail (Malicious Communications Act 1988); causing harassment, 
alarm or distress (Public Order Act 1986); harassment; murder; sexual assault; theft; fraud; or burglary. See Citizens Advice, What 
are hate incidents and hate crime  

Page 65

Agenda Item 6

https://www.met.police.uk/advice/advice-and-information/hco/hate-crime/what-is-hate-crime/
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/law-and-courts/discrimination/hate-crime/what-are-hate-incidents-and-hate-crime/
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/law-and-courts/discrimination/hate-crime/what-are-hate-incidents-and-hate-crime/


        

 

3.3 The number of hate crimes being recorded by the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) has risen in 

recent years. This has been attributed to a range of factors, including a growing willingness of 

victims to report, an improved awareness of the police in identifying offences, and work with 

partners to support victims. In 2017/18, nearly a quarter of all hate crime prosecutions in England 

and Wales were in London, but conviction rates were among the lowest across England and Wales.3 

 

3.4 The Mayor has said that City Hall and the MPS will take a “zero-tolerance approach” to hate crime. 

He has made several commitments related to hate crime in his Police and Crime Plan, with the aims 

of encouraging more victims of hate crime to report; reducing the level of repeat victimisation; 

reducing the rates of attrition in hate crime cases as they progress through the criminal justice 

process; and improving the level of satisfaction of victims of hate crime with the service they receive 

from the Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) and the criminal justice system. 
 

3.5 At its meeting on 14 May 2019, the Committee agreed to delegate authority to the Chair, in 

consultation with the party Group Lead Members and Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, to agree the scope 

for the Committee’s scrutiny review of hate crime, which is set out in section 4 below. 
 

 

4. Issues for Consideration 

 

4.1 The Committee’s investigation aims to: 

 Assess the Mayor’s progress in protecting Londoners from hate crime; 

 Assess the Mayor’s progress in delivering better support for victims of hate crime; 

 Examine the effectiveness and impact of the MPS’s operational response to hate crime; and 

 Examine the role third sector organisations can play in assisting the Mayor and MPS’s response. 

 

4.2 The meeting will enable the Committee to hear from organisations representing victims of various 

types of hate crime. Members will seek views on the effectiveness of the Mayor’s actions to date and 

the current challenges and opportunities are in reducing the level of hate crime. Guest organisations 

will include: 

 The Community Security Trust 

 Hope Not Hate 

 Tell Mama  

 Galop 

 Others guest organisations to be confirmed. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 

 

                                                 
3
 See Crown Prosecution Service, Hate Crime Annual Report 2017–18, 16 October 2018  

Page 66

https://www.cps.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/publications/cps-hate-crime-report-2018.pdf


        

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers:  Member Delegated Authority Form 1067 (scope for hate crime investigation) 

 

Contact Officer: Becky Short, Policy Adviser 

Telephone: 020 7983 4760 

E-mail: becky.short@london.gov.uk 
 

Page 67

mailto:Rebecca.owen-evans@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Police and Crime Committee Work 
Programme  

 

Report to: Police and Crime Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 23 May 2019 

This report will be considered in public 

 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report sets out progress on the Police and Crime Committee’s work programme. 

 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1  That the Committee notes its work programme as set out the report. 

 

 

3. Background  
 
3.1 The Committee’s work programme is intended to enable the Committee to effectively fulfil its roles 

of holding the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to account and investigating issues 

of importance to policing and crime reduction in London.  The Committee’s work involves a range of 

activities, including formal meetings with MOPAC, the Metropolitan Police Service (the MPS) and 

other stakeholders, site visits, written consultations and round table meetings. 

 

3.2 The Committee will usually meet twice a month.  One of the monthly meetings is usually to hold a 

question and answer (Q&A) session with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime.  The 

Commissioner of the MPS has been invited to these meetings.  The Committee will primarily use 

Q&A meetings to investigate topical issues and review MPS performance, including consideration of 

MOPAC’s approach to holding the MPS to account.  

 

3.3 The Committee’s other monthly meeting is used to consider a particular topic or aspect of policing 

and crime in greater detail.  These investigations will be conducted either by the full Committee or 

working groups.  Working groups will have delegated authority to prepare reports on the 

Committee’s behalf in consultation with party Group Lead Members.  Full reports will be approved 

and published by the full Committee. 

 

 

 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



        

4. Issues for Consideration  
  

4.1  The work programme has been designed to proactively examine issues of interest but also allows for 

flexibility to respond to topical issues and for the Committee to react to MOPAC’s work programme. 

Topics will be added to the timetable for Q&A meetings as they arise. The Committee may choose to 

use its thematic meeting slot for roundtables, briefings and site visits as well as formal committee 

meetings.  

 

4.2 The Committee’s work programme currently includes: 

 

Meeting Date 
 

Type of Meeting 

Tuesday, 4 June 2019 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 
 

Wednesday, 19 June 2019 at 10am 
 

Thematic – Sexual offences and rape 

Wednesday, 3 July 2019 at 10am 
 

Q&A session  

Wednesday, 17 July 2019 at 10am 
 

Thematic 

Wednesday, 4 September 2019 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 

Thursday, 19 September 2019 at 10am 
 

Thematic 

Thursday, 3 October 2019 at 10am 
 

Thematic 
 

Tuesday, 15 October 2019 at 10am 
 

Q&A (3 PCC meetings in October) 
 

Wednesday, 30 October 2019 at 10am Thematic 
 

Wednesday, 13 November 2019 at 10am Q&A session 
 

Wednesday, 27 November 2019 at 10am 
 

Thematic 
 

Wednesday, 4 December 2019 at 10am Q&A session 
 

Thursday, 9 January 2020 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 

Wednesday, 22 January 2020 at 10am Thematic 
 

Wednesday, 5 February 2020 at 10am 
 

Q&A session 

Wednesday, 12 February 2020 at 10am 
 

Thematic 

Wednesday, 4 March 2020 at 10am  
 

Q&A session 

Wednesday, 18 March 2020 at 10am 
 

Thematic 

 

 
 

Page 70



        

Site Visits 

4.3 From time to time the Committee undertakes site visits to support its work.  The Committee has 

previously agreed that it will undertake site visits to the MPS’s Basic Command Units, a custody 

suite and the Metropolitan Police Marine Policing Unit.  Members have also expressed an interest in 

visiting the Metropolitan Police Dog Support Unit.  The Committee may wish to give further 

consideration to the timing and arrangements for those site visits in the 2019/20 Assembly year. 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 
 

6. Financial Implications 

 

6.1 There are no financial implications to the Greater London Authority arising from this report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  None 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  

List of Background Papers:  None 

 

Contact Officer: Becky Short, Policy Adviser 

Telephone: 020 7983 4760 

E-mail: becky.short@london.gov.uk   

 

Page 71

mailto:becky.short@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcipt of Item 7 - The London Violence Reduction Unit

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Response to the Committee's Letter on Setting Local Policing Priorities and Tackling Neighbourhood Crime
	Appendix 1 - Letter from the Mayor re local policing priorities

	6 Hate Crime
	7 Police and Crime Committee Work Programme



